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PART I
Iltem 1. Business

We are an integrated media and entertainment coynpancipally engaged in the development, producaind marketing of television
programming, live events and the licensing and sBl¥anded consumer products featuring our WorteédMing Entertainment brand. We
have been involved in the sports entertainmentiegsi for over 20 years, and have developed Workkstliitg Entertainment into one of the
most popular forms of entertainment today.

The key economic drivers of our business, telewisaiings, average attendance at our live evemtpay-per-view buys, remain down from
historical levels. In fiscal 2003, we created twstidct television brands, Raw and SmackDown!, eaith its own story lines and talent. This
allowed us to create two touring companies ancege the number of live events we hold globally @edlides the potential to increase our
share of the entertainment business. We believdhisastrategy is beginning to take hold, but reetthe to produce the intended marketplace
results. We retain the distinction of consistelyng the number one regularly scheduled prograwabie with Raw which airs on TNN, a
SmackDown! is the highest-rated show on UPN. Intamd this past television season SmackDown! viastlird highest rated regularly
scheduled program among male teens on Thursdatsnigh

In this Annual Report on Form 10 "WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainmentgcl and its subsidiaries and its predecessorsssitiie
context otherwise requires. References to "we,""loar" and the "Company" refer to WWE and its siglaries. World Wrestling
Entertainment and the stylized and highly distietiVorld Wrestling Entertainment scratch logo ave of our marks. This Annual Report
Form 10-K also contains other WWE trademarks aadetmames as well as those of other companieg:adltmarks and trade names
appearing in this report are the property of thespective holders.

Creative Development and Production

Our creative team, headed by Vincent McMahon, dms=oap opera-like story lines employing the statleniques that are used by many
successful television series. We create compediimdjcomplex characters and weave them into infeeaehtertainment that combines social
satire, action adventure, drama, mystery, athiticind humor. The interactions among the charaafiext a wide variety of contemporary
topics, often depicting exaggerated versions dflifeasituations and typically containing "goodrsas evil" or "settling the score" themes.
Story lines are usually played out in the wrestlimg, our main stage, and typically unfold on waekly television shows and monthly pay-
per-view events. Woven into the story lines isdhgoing competition for the various World WrestliBgtertainment championship titles.

Our creative team also develops a character fdr padormer. Once a character's basic traits haee bormulated, we work to define and
emphasize those traits through various accessani@sding costumes and entrance music. We ownmidfits to the majority of our characte
and we exclusively license the rights we do not ¢thvough agreements with our performers.

Our success is, in large part, due to the contmpippularity of our performers. We currently haxelasive contracts with approximately 140
performers, ranging from development contracts wittspective performers to long term guaranteedracts with established performers.
These contracts vary depending upon a number tdrigdncluding the performer's popularity with @udience, and his or her skill level and
prior experience. Our performers are independemiractors who are highly trained and motivated pmidray popular characters such as The
Rock, Stone Cold Steve Austin, The Undertaker,l&rh Goldberg, Kane, Chris Jericho, Kurt Angle @&rdck Lesnar. We constantly seel
identify, recruit and develop additional performéasour business. Once recruited, establishedpadrs are immediately incorporated into
our story lines while less experienced performarsigipate in our own extensive developmental trajrprograms.

With limited exceptions, we retain all rights inrpetuity to any intellectual property that we deyein connection with the characters
portrayed by our performers. This includes the abti@r and any associated costumes, names, propslises and merchandise. Our
performers share in a portion of the revenueswieateceive. We believe that our relationships with performers are generally good.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

Live events and television programming are ourgipial creative and production activities. The fallng chart reflects worldwide revenues
from these activities for each of our five fiscalys ended April 30, 2003:

[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Live & Televised Entertainm ent Revenue
(% in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$170.1 $265.5 $335.7 $ 323.5 $295.4
$150 $200 $250 $300 $350 $400

Live Events

Live events are the cornerstone of our businessjging the content for our television and pay-p®mw programming. Each event is a highly
theatrical production, which involves a significalegree of audience participation and employs vargpecial effects, including lighting,
pyrotechnics, powerful entrance music and a vaoégrops.

We promote our live events through a variety of imgihcluding television, radio, print and the Imtet. Our revenues from live events are
primarily derived from ticket sales, with prices the year averaging approximately $39.00 per tickbe operator of a venue at which our
live event is held typically receives a fixed faeagpercentage of the revenues from ticket and maeidise sales.

In fiscal 2003, we held 327 live events in approaiely 193 cities in North America, including 44tbé 50 largest metropolitan areas in the
United States, as well as eighteen internatiorations. We have consistently held many of our éivents at major arenas, such as Madison
Square Garden in New York City, Arrowhead Pond oflAeim, Allstate Arena in Chicago, First Union Genih Philadelphia, and the Fleet
Center in Boston. We expect to hold approximat@@-330 live events in fiscal 2004. With two taléssams each aligned with a distinct
brand, we are able to take advantage of internatid@mand of our events and have planned approgiynd® international events in fiscal
2004, including tours in Europe, Asia and Australia



The following chart reflects worldwide revenuesnfréive events for each of our five fiscal years esdpril 30, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Live Events Revenue
($ in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$49.6 $68.9 $81.9 $74.1 $72.2
$25 $75 $125

The following chart reflects worldwide attendanoenfi live events for each of our five fiscal yeansled April 30, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Live Events Atten dance
(in thousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

2,274 2,485 2,450 2,033 1,815
1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000
o 199 Events in 1999 0 206 Events in 2000 o 212 Eventsin 2001
0 237 Events in 2002 0 327 Eventsin 2003




Television Programming

As an independent producer, relying primarily on ioshouse production capabilities, we create sdgtavision shows, consisting of nine
hours of original programming, 52 weeks per yean. @ine hours of programming deliver approximatEymillion television impressions
each week. In addition to our television programgmine produce 12 pay-per-view events.

Seven hours of our programming air domesticallgainle and broadcast networks owned by Viacom Imd.tao hours air on syndicated
television stations. Our programming lineup is@mivs:

o Raw is our two-hour live production that airsTN in primetime and has consistently been the remolne rated regularly scheduled cable
television program.

o SmackDown! is a taped two-hour program that@ir&nited Paramount Network ("UPN") in primetimedds the highest rated program on
UPN.

o Sunday Night Heat is primarily a taped one-howg €vent program which has aired on TNN on Surelagnings since April 2003, and
Bottom Line is a post produced "magazine" type shdnich airs in syndication on Friday / Saturdaytgy Both of these programs help
further define our Raw brand. Prior to April 20@&jnday Night Heat aired on MTV.

o Velocity is a taped one-hour live event prograhicl airs on TNN on Saturday nights, and After Bisra post produced "magazine" type
show which airs in syndication on Saturday / Sunigits. Both of these programs help further defineSmackDown! brand.

o Confidential is a taped one-hour magazine-stgdgam which airs on TNN on Saturday nights. Thimgpam provides an up-close look at
World Wrestling Entertainment and its past and @néperformers, both in and out of the ring.

Currently TNN is available in approximately 85 riult households and UPN is available in approxinya@&l million households. Our two
syndicated programs air on approximately 240 braststations across the country.

In connection with our TNN programming, we receavgghts fee totaling approximately $0.6 milliorr peeek. This agreement remains in
effect through the Fall of 2005. In connection watlr UPN programming, we will receive a rights &eapproximately $0.3 million per week
beginning in October 2003. This agreement remairesfect through the Fall of 2004, with UPN havimg successive one year options
thereafter.

In addition to the foregoing programming, we haggpcoduced a weekly half-hour reality-based prograaugh Enough, on MTV. MTV has
not excercised its option for a fourth season and eesult, we are exploring other networks toyctme show.
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The following chart reflects revenues from domestlevision rights fees for each of our five fisgakrs ended April 30, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Domestic Television Rights Fees Revenue
($ in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$5.0 $7.0 $20.9 $35.0 $38.8
$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50

In addition to rights fees, we generate revenuesitih the sale of a substantial portion of the atbieg time on our TNN programming and
Canadian television programs to over 110 major dibegs and sponsors. We advertise products framesaf the leading companies in the
food and beverage, video game, toy, movie andigdevstudio and telecommunications industries, mgnathers. In addition to the sale of
our advertising time, we also package sponsorsbipseet the needs of our advertisers. These spgitipeirange from presenting the Slan
The Week, a 25-35 second spot that airs withint@ewision programs, to sponsoring our annual Vigbkinia event. Through these
sponsorships, we offer advertisers a full rangeusfpromotional vehicles, including television,dmet and print advertising, arena signage,
on-air announcements and special appearances Ipedormers. Additionally, as part of certain spanship packages, we produce
commercials featuring our performers. Due to thesdg of certain demographics that our programnaititacts, we believe that we are an
efficient vehicle for our advertisers. Our prograimgnis principally directed to audiences aged 1340

Advertising time and customized sponsorship prograne sold directly by our sales forces. Our areament with TNN provides that we pay
the network a fixed percentage of our net adveisevenues less certain adjustments with a guagdmhinimum. With respect to
SmackDown!, under our new agreement, which wileffective October 2003, UPN will sell all adventigiinventory and sponsorship
elements and pay us a rights fee.

The following chart reflects worldwide advertisirgvenues for each of our five fiscal years endedl| 8, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Advertising Reve nues, net
($ in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$30.1 $77.9 $90.3 $83.6 $72.9
$0 $50 $1 00 $150



Our television and music recording studios and-postiuction operations, including producers, divesteditors, cameramen, audio
engineers, graphic designers, English and Spapishking announcers and an administrative staffdhatsees the production schedule, are
housed at our state-of-the-art facility in Stamfd@dnnecticut. Our staff is augmented by freelaeclnicians who assist in our remote
television broadcasts.

Pay-Per-View Programming

On a monthly basis, our story lines either culmenat change direction at each pay-per-view evertiénsively market and promote the
story lines that are associated with our upcomang per-view event through our television shows, laternet sites, and a variety of other
promotional campaigns. We produce 12 domestic gayvigw programs annually, which consistently rankong the highest selling pay-per-
view programs. Pay-per-view buys of our domestiengés were 5.4 million, 7.1 million and 8.0 milliamfiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. A substantial number of buys for aerg and the related payment is determined andlpattie cable and satellite distributors
within 120 days after the event. Final reconcitiatis generally completed within one year. Wrest@h, which is our annual premier event,
has a suggested retail price of $39.95 and eaobradther 11 domestic pay-per-view events has gesigd retail price of $34.95. Consistent
with industry practices, we share the revenues thighcable systems and satellite providers andspasice fees to inDemand.

The following chart reflects worldwide revenuesnfrour pay-per-view programming for each of our fiiseal years ended April 30, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Pay-Per-View Reve nues
($ in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$81.0 $106.4 $128.2 $112.0 $91.1
$0 $50 $1 00 $150

Television Rights Fees Revenues Outside of North Aarica

Our television programming is currently broadcasbver 100 countries and 12 different languagesh@ie expanded our distribution
throughout Asia, Europe, Latin America, Australiaafrica and have secured new television distidruagreements on terrestrial, cable and
satellite platforms throughout those locations. Muastably we have recently signed distribution agnents with broadcasters in Germany,
Japan and Singapore.



The following chart reflects television rights feesenues outside of North America for each offoug fiscal years ended April 30, 2003:
[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Television Rights Fees Revenues outside of North America
($ in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$4.1 $5.1 $14.3 $18.3 $19.7

$0 $10 $20 $3 0 $40

Branded Merchandise

We offer a wide variety of branded merchandiseugloa licensing program and an integrated dirdesszfort. The following chart reflects
worldwide revenues from the sale of our brandedchrandise for each of our five fiscal years ended! 3, 2003:

[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Branded Merchandise Revenues
(% in millions)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$80.2 $112.4 $102.5 $86.1 $78.9
$0 $50 $1 00 $150

Licensing and Direct Sales

We have an established worldwide licensing proguaing our World Wrestling Entertainment marks asgbks, copyrighted works and
characters on thousands of retail products, inoltbys, video games, apparel, books and a widetassnt of other items. In all of our
licensing agreements, we retain creative approved the design, packaging, advertising and promatimaterial associated with licensed
products to maintain the distinctive style, looklayuality of our intellectual property and brandir@icensing agreements provide that we
receive a percentage of the wholesale revenuesmgmltly and require minimum guarantees.

Our direct merchandise operations consist of tisggde sourcing, marketing and distribution of vasgroducts, such as T-shirts, caps and
other items, all of which feature our characterd/anour scratch logo. All of these products arsigieed by our in-house creative staff and
manufactured by third parties. The merchandisel & our live events under arrangements withatlemas, which receive a percentage o
revenues. Our merchandise is also sold throughvaueshopzone.com web site, our internally develagadlogs and our television shows.
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Home Video

We own and continue to amass a video library cairtgithousands of hours of programming from our-passview events and our television
shows dating back to the 1970s. Beginning in the-1980s, this library was used in the productiod sale of home videos by a licensee. In
1998, we began to produce and market home videbsuse and in 1999, we added DVD's. In additioprtmlucing videos and DVD's from
our library of footage, we also utilize originabfiage produced specifically for this purpose. Weate master tapes and contract with third
parties to create our DVD master and to duplicatevideos and DVD's. In August 2001, we entered art agreement with Sony Music
Video, under which Sony is responsible for the dsticeetail distribution of our home video produd@sir videos are typically sold at retail
sales prices of $14.95 to $19.95 for VHS and $2#085ur DVD's. In fiscal 2003, we sold approxinigte.4 million units which consisted of
24 new titles as well as other titles from our kega

The injunction issued by the English High Courtdgal proceedings instituted against us by World&\und for Nature affects the
Company's use, repackaging and sales of our hiatorideo library due to legal constraints agaursshg our former logo and verbal
references to the "WWEF." See Note 11 to Notes tosClidated Financial Statements.

SmackDown! Records

Music is an integral part of the entertainment eiquese at our live events and on our televisiorgprmns. We compose and record theme
songs tailored to our characters in our recordingdie in Stamford, Connecticut. We and a third-panusic publisher own the musical
composition rights to music produced prior to Japuda 2003, and we own all of the sound recordigbts to our master recordings and all of
the musical composition rights to music producedeiJanuary 1, 2003. Third parties manufacturekenand distribute CDs of our music to
retailers nationwide, such as MusicLand, K-Mart,[\AMart, Best Buy and Transworld.

Publishing

Our publishing operations consist primarily of tmagazines, World Wrestling Entertainment Magazimé RAW Magazine, each of which
are issued every four weeks, and a series of dpegihof these magazines are used to help shageamplement story lines in our televis
programs and at our live events. We also includeext marketing catalog in our magazines on atgqugrbasis. The magazines include color
photographs taken at recent live events, biograpdmel features of our performers and human intaréstes. Our in-house publishing and
editorial departments prepare all editorial contév use outside contractors to print and distalibe magazines to subscribers and
newsstands. The combined circulation of our magazimas approximately 5.4 million and circulationdar specials was approximately 1.0
million in fiscal 2003.

Under a publishing licensing agreement that weredtato with Simon and Schuster in November 20@2have our own publishing imprit
This agreement has provided us the opportunitydaden into literary genres beyond autobiograples ding children's books, cookbooks,
historical anthologies, trivia books and yearbooks.

Digital Media

We utilize the Internet to promote our brand, @esatommunity experience among our fans and toeharid distribute our various products.
Through our network of Internet sites, our fans parchase and view our monthly pay-per-view spe@ald purchase our branded
merchandise online through our wweshopzone.comigitddition, our fans can obtain our latest nand information, including content tt

is accessible only online, stay abreast of ounnglstory lines, tap into interactive chat room£bmmunicate with each other and our
performers, experience archived video and audjs af performers and previous media events andsa@lkreports we file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. We promote @oaeon our televised programming, at our live esgimt our magazines and in
substantially all of our marketing and promotiondterials. In addition to wwe.com and wweshopzama,our network of sites includes,
among others, therock.com, wwedivas.com, underizd@rand wwecorpbiz.com.

WWE.com continues to maintain a strong base imtivaber of people visiting our sites and purchasimgproducts via the Internet.
According to netScore, in April 2003, our Intersées generated approximately 210 million page siawrldwide, and we had approximat
5.8 million unique visitors worldwide.



Total Sales outside North America

The following chart reflects revenues derived freahes outside of North America from all activitigghin our live and televised and branded
merchandise segments for each of our three fismaisyended April 30, 2003:

[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Total Revenues from Sales outside of North America
($ in millions)

2001 2002 2003
$28.9 $38.5 $51.8

$0 $25 $50 $75

Other Business Developments

In fiscal 2002, we launched a new entertainmerisiim, WWE Films, which is based in Los Angelesl|ifGenia, to spearhead our initiatives
in developing complementary theatrical and televigiroductions. Our first planned project is adeatilm, which is currently in the
development phase. In addition, we also are irdéwelopment phase of an animation series.

Discontinued Operations

In May 2000, we acquired for approximately $24.8iom an entertainment complex in New York City.rdbgh May 2003, we invested an
additional $31.5 million in the facility. These iestments included the construction of a marqueeaastévision and recording sound stage
and studio. The complex included a 600 seat resthand 2,200 square feet of retail space. ThigptemThe World, generated net revenue
of $8.1 million, $14.1 million and $16.6 million firscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, andrimclioperating losses of $43.1 million,
$7.9 million and $2.6 million in fiscal 2003, 208R2d 2001, respectively.

In February 2003, we closed the restaurant opesitib the entertainment complex and in April 2008,closed the retail store. As a result,
we recorded an after-tax charge of approximatel® $#llion in our fourth quarter ended April 30,@0 This amount includes, in addition to
other costs, rental payments required under thee)a®et of our current estimate of potential sutialdncome. This lease expires on October
31, 2017 and the aggregate rental payments thrihwggénd of the term are approximately $46.0 milkawluding any potential sub-rental
income. Included in fiscal 2003 loss from discon&d operations was an impairment charge of $32lfbmas a result of an impairment test
conducted on goodwill ($2.5 million) and other lelhged assets ($30.4 million).

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan basegtitertainment industry is highly competitive anthject to fluctuations in popularity, whi
are not easy to predict. For our live, televisiod @ay-per-view audiences we face competition fppofessional and college sports as well as
from other forms of live, film and televised entgniment and other leisure activities. We competaévertising dollars with other media
companies. We compete with entertainment



companies, professional and college sports leageother makers of branded apparel and merchafudigiee sale of our branded
merchandise. Many companies with whom we compete geeater financial resources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspect®of operations and we expend substantial cosetiod in an attempt to maintain and protect
our intellectual property and to maintain complianis-a-vis other parties' intellectual propertgeNote 11 to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. We have a large portfolicegfstered and pending trademarks and service maykdwide and maintain a large
catalog of copyright registrations for music, fifootage, photographs, books and magazines, vida®) games and apparel art and
miscellaneous merchandise. The focus of our contiauegistration effort is to seek copyright arsdiemark registration of marks and works
which embody our originally created charactersipged by our performers, and which encompass imédigeaesses, names and logos of
these characters. We also own a large number efiiet web domain names and have a network of dee@lsites, which contribute to the
exploitation of our trademarks and service marksgdvade.

We vigorously enforce our intellectual propertyhtig by, among other things, searching the Intemascertain unauthorized use of our
intellectual property, seizing goods at our liveets that feature unauthorized use of our intellqiroperty and pursuing legal action aga
parties infringing our intellectual property rights

Employees

The following chart reflects worldwide head coustod June 2003, 2002 and 2001. The headcount eeslerthployees of our discontinued
operations, The World and the XFL.

[THE FOLLOWING DATA WAS REPRESENTED AS A COLUMN CHA RT IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL]

Worldwide Headcount

2001 2002 2003

214 212 202

154 154 148

81 69 62
0 50 100 150 200 250 300
o0 Responsible for the management, marketing and administrative functions.
o0 Responsible for the organization and producti on of live events and

television programming.
o Responsible for licensing, merchandising and consumer product sales.

0 2001 Total = 449; 2002 Total = 435; 2003 Tota | =412

Our in-house production staff is supplemented withtract personnel for our television productiore ¥élieve that our relationships with our
employees are generally satisfactory. None of oysleyees are represented by a union.

Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and musiorging studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locations near Stamfor:
Connecticut, and have offices in New York, Londdaronto and Los Angeles. We own
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the buildings in which our executive and adminigteoffices, our television and music recordingdsbs and our post-production operations
are located. We lease space for our sales of®8E Films office, and our warehouse facilities.

Our principal properties consist of the following:

Expiration Date

Facility Location Square Feet Owned/Leased of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114 ,300 Owned

Production studio Stamford, CT 39 ,000(1) Owned -

Ring / Photo studio ~ Stamford, CT 5 ,600 Leased May 11, 2006
Sales office New York, NY 10 ,075 Leased July 15, 2008
Sales office Toronto, Canada 7 ,069 Leased February 28, 2006
Sales office London, England 600 Leased Month to month
Executive office Los Angeles, CA 2 ,100 Leased July 15, 2007
Warehouse Trumbull, CT 30 ,000 Leased August 9, 2004

(1) Excludes 4,000 sq ft of temporary space andQlEBsquare feet of parking space adjacent toridugtion facilities.

In addition, we own a daycare facility in Stamfo@bnnecticut on property adjacent to our productamilities, which originally offered child

care services only to our employees, but is now afgen to the public. The licensing and operatiithis facility is fully managed by a third-

party contractor. We have the responsibility toagbthe required licenses and to ensure that tityameets health, safety, fire and building
codes.

We are currently in the process of seeking a sianteor assignee for our 46,500 square foot repedesin New York City, which was used
for our entertainment complex, The World. The leasggires in October 2017, and aggregate rental patsrthrough the end of the term are
approximately $46.0 million, excluding any potehsiab-rental income.

Regulation
Live Events

In certain states we are required to comply witfutations of state athletic commissions and otpefieable regulatory agencies in order to
promote and conduct our live entertainment. Twdny-states require that we obtain a promoter'siieewhich is a corporate license
necessary for us to promote our live events aggasted to us on an annual basis. Twenty statesreegur performers and referees to obtain
a performer's license, which is an individual lisemecessary for our performers and referees forpeat our live events and is typically
granted to them on an annual basis. Eight statgsreethat our performers take an annual physixaimgénation. In addition to the annual
licenses that certain states require, twelve statgsre that we obtain a permit for each eventwehold. We are also subject to the
regulations of athletic commissions in certain Ghaa provinces. These commissions require thathtaito promoter's licenses and medical
approval for our performers. We are in compliandth a&ll applicable state and local athletic comnoisgegulations.

Television Programming

The production and distribution of television pragnming by independent producers is not directlyliegd by the federal or state
governments, but the marketplace for televisiorg@mming in the United States is substantiallyciéfd by regulations of the Federal
Communications Commission applicable to televigtations, television networks and cable televisigstems and channels. We voluntarily
designate the suitability of each of our televisshiows using standard industry ratings, such adlR@ or TV14.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 11 to Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 4. Submission of matters to a vote of Securitiolders

None.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Price Range of Class A Common Stock
Our Class A common stock trades on the New YorklSExchange under the symbol "WWE."

The following table sets forth the high and the kale prices for the shares of Class A common sisaleported by the New York Stock
Exchange for the periods indicated.

Class A common stock

Fiscal 2003 High Low
-F-i-r_s_;(-Q_[J-arter -“-;15.30 ----- $8.49
Second Quarter $10.40 $6.76
Third Quarter $9.02 $7.53
Fourth Quarter $9.20 $7.43

Class A common stock

Fiscal 2002 High Low
-F-i-r_s_;(-Q_[J-arter -“-;15.50 ______ $12.00
Second Quarter $13.20 $10.33
Third Quarter $14.25 $10.67
Fourth Quarter $15.85 $12.85

There were 10,557 holders of record of Class A comstock and three holders of record of Class Bmomstock as of June 13, 2003.

In June 2003, our Board of Directors approved daynpent of a quarterly dividend of $0.04 per sharalbClass A and Class B common
shares. The record date for the first such dividerine 27, 2003 and the payment date will berabout July 10, 2003.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain informatieith respect to securities authorized for issuanwer equity compensation plans as of A
30, 2003.

Plan Category Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securi ties remaining
to be issued upon exercise price of available for fu ture issuance
exercise of outstanding outstanding options,  under equity com pensation plans
options, warrants and ri ghts  warrants and rights  (excluding secur ities reflected in

column (a))
(@) (b) ()
Equity compensation 6,964,450 $15.89 2,822, 350

plans approved by
security holders

Equity compensation None N/A None
plans not approved by
security holders

Total 6,964,450 $15.89 2,822, 350

On June 13, 2003, we granted 792,500 options ekertise price of $9.60 and granted 178,000 stodnesstricted stock at an average price
per share of $9.60. Such issuances were grantezt ond 1999 Long-term Incentive Plan, which wasraped by our stockholders.

13



Item 6. Selected Historical Consolidated Financiadnd Other Data

The following table sets forth our selected histakiconsolidated financial data for each of the figcal years in the period ended April 30,
2003. The selected historical consolidated findrdaga as of April 30, 2003 and 2002 and for tisedl years ended April 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001 have been derived from the audited consolidftancial statements included elsewhere in thisiF10-K. The selected historical
consolidated financial data as of April 30, 20000@ and 1999 and for the fiscal years ended ABiP®00 and 1999 have been derived from
our audited consolidated financial statements, whizve not been included in this Form 10-K. Cerpior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to current year presentatiou should read the selected historical conatdid financial data in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements anatee notes and the information set forth underribdgement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" aored elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(dollars in thousands, except p er share data)

Summary Operations Data:
Net revVeNUES ........ccoeevvereineriierieenn ... $374,264  $409,622 $438,139  $37 7,899  $250,335
Cost Of reVeNUES .......cccvvvvviiiiiieenne. ... 237,343 251,124 249,308 21 9,569 145,887
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) .. ... 99,349 98,291 96,486 7 1,095 45,521
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes (2) .......ccoeveevivrennnnns ... 27,358 67,451 102,669 7 4,777 57,973
Income from continuing operations (3) ............. .... 16,362 42,498 64,526 5 9,577 56,030
Net (Ioss) iNcome (4) ..ooovveeveeerveccieecneens .o $(19,195) $42,233 $15987 $5 8,908 $56,030
Earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings from continuing operations

per common share: basic and diluted .............. .. $ 023 $ 058 $ 090 % 095 $ 0.99
(Loss) earnings per common share:

basic and diluted ...........cccooevveviennnn ... $(027) $ 058 $ 022 $ 094 $ 0.99
Summary Cash Flows Data:
Net (I0SS) INCOME ....eveeveeciiecirecieeeiee ... $(19,195) $42,233 $15987 $5 8,908 $56,030
Depreciation & amortization ... ... $10545 $10,174 $ 4,736 $ 2,544 $ 1,946
Changes in working captial ............ccceevnnee ... (3,751) 28,598  (10,595) ( 3,157) (2,297)
Capital expenditures and other

investing activities, Net ...........c..ccceevee ... (13,593) (4,485) (14,404) (1 5,068) (14,634)
Financing activities, net .............ccceeueeee. ... (29,072) (1,282) 61,057 11 0,474 (6,082)

As of April 30,

Summary Balance Sheets Data: 2003 2002 2001 2 000 1999

(dollars in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents and

short-term investments ............ccccvveeeennne ... $271,114  $293,803 $239,058 $20 8,992  $45,727
Property and equipment-net ... 59,325 59,214 54,819 4 1,484 28,377
Total aSSetS ...uuveeeeieiiieiiieeieeeeeeeeeees ... 437,257 495,352 466,181 33 7,032 130,188
Total long-term debt (including

current POrtion) .....c.eeeeveeevieveenieeennns 9,903 9,903 10,459 1 1,417 12,791
Total stockholders' equity ..........ccocuvernnnns .... 341,959 389,438 347,859 25 8,537 72,260

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(dollars in thousands)

Other Non-Financial Data:

Number of live events...........cccccovvevrnnnen, 327 237 212 206 199
Total attendance.................. . .... 1,815,100 2,032,754 2,449,800 2,4 85,100 2,273,701
Domestic pay-per-view buys...........cc.ccovveenne .... 5,378,100 7,135,464 8,010,400 6,8 84,600 5,365,100

(1) Included in fiscal 2001 was a payment for telement of an outstanding lawsuit for $7.0 millig4.3 million, net of taxes).

(2) Included in fiscal 2001 and 2000 were non-cgtelak option charges of approximately $0.8 mill{0.5 million, net of taxes) and
approximately $6.0 million ($3.7 million, net ofx&s), respectively, relating to the granting otktoptions to certain performers who are
independent contractors. In addition, includedsndl 2000 was a non-
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cash charge of $9.3 million ($5.7 million, net akés). In April 2000, we entered into a non-fodble agreement with Viacom whereby
Viacom acquired approximately 2.3 million newlyussl shares of our Class A common stock at $13hzees

(3) Concurrent with the issuance of shares in oitial public offering in October 1999 (the "Offag"), we terminated our election to be
subject to the provisions of Subchapter S and baceme subject to the provisions of Subchapter t@efnternal Revenue Code. The
provision for income taxes reflected in our histaticonsolidated financial statements through #ite df our Offering relates only to foreign
and certain state income taxes for those statéglith@ot recognize Subchapter S status.

(4) Included in our net (loss) income was the ofegaresults of our discontinued operations, Therd/and the XFL and their respective
estimated shutdown costs.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in confimt with the audited consolidated financial stagé@ts and related notes included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background

We are an integrated media and entertainment coynqmancipally engaged in the development, productaod marketing of television
programming and live events and the licensing ahel af branded consumer products featuring ourhiginccessful brands.

Our operations are organized around two principaviies:

o Live and televised entertainment, which congi§is/e event and television programming. Revertmssist principally of attendance at live
events, sale of television advertising time andchspeoships, domestic and international televisights fees and pay-per-view buys.

o Branded merchandise, which consists of licenamdjdirect sale of merchandise. Revenues inclualentirketing and sale of merchandise,
magazines and home videos, and revenues from cemgqroducts sold through third party licensees.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2003 compared to Fidedr Ended April 30, 2002

Net revenues 2003 2002 better (wor se)
Live & Televised $295.4 $323.5 (9%)

Branded Merchandise $78.9 $86.1 (8%)

Total $374.3 $409.6 (9%)

The following chart reflects comparative revenued key drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

Live & Televised Revenues 2003 2002 better (wor se)
Live Events $ 722 $ 741 (3%)
Number of Events 327 237 38%
Average Attendance 5,551 8,562 (35%)
Average Ticket Price $38.82 $ 35.69 9%
Pay-Per-View $ 911 $ 112.0 (19%)
Number of Domestic Buys 5,378,100 7,135,464 (25%)
Retail Price,excluding Wrestlemania $29.95 $ 24.95 20%
Advertising $ 729 $ 83.6 (13%)
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.7 4.6 (20%)
Average weekly household ratings for SmackD own! 34 4.0 (15%)
Sponsorship revenues $ 8.7 $ 132 (34%)
Television Rights Fees:
Domestic $ 38.8 $ 35.0 11%
International $ 19.7 $ 18.3 8%
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The following chart reflects comparative revenued eertain drivers for selected business withinlmanded merchandise segment:

Branded Merchandise Revenues 2003
Licensing $21.8
Merchandise $22.4

Per Capita Spending $9.15
Publishing $15.2

Net Units sold 6,427,50
Home Video $13.8

Net Units sold:

DVD 916,200
VHS 466,800
Internet Advertising $ 49
Cost of Revenues 2003
Live & Televised $190.6
Branded Merchandise $46.7
Total $237.3
Profit Contribution Margin 37%

Cost of Revenues -Live & Televised 2003
Live Events $ 56.1
Pay-Per-View $ 36.7
Advertising $ 35.2
Television $ 50.2
Other $ 124

Profit Contribution Margin 35%

The decrease in the profit contribution margin was primarily to the impact of the William Morrisg&ncy, Inc. settlement, the fixed nature
of our television production costs and the dedimpay-per-view revenues.

Cost of Revenues - Branded Merchandise
Licensing $ 6.6
Merchandise $ 204
Publishing $ 94
Home Video $ 6.5
Digital Media $ 33
Profit Contribution Margin 41%

The increase in the profit contribution margin wia® in part to the absence of costs in fiscal 2@G8ed to our sponsoring of a National Hot
Rod Association ("NHRA") racing team and lower expes associated with maintaining our web sitesicafi 2003 and higher inventory

write-offs in the home video category in fiscal 200

2003
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$26.2
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The following chart reflects the amounts and petrcaange of certain significant overhead items:

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 20 03 2002  better (worse)
Staff related expenses $ 3 6.6 $ 37.4 2%

Legal and litigation 1 8.4 14.6 (26%)
Consulting and accounting fees 8.9 8.9 --
Advertising and promotion expenses 8.6 9.4 9%

Bad debt expense 3.8 1.0 (280%)

All other 2 3.0 27.0 15%

Total SG&A $9 9.3 $ 983 1%
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 27% 24%

The increase in bad debt expense was relateddg-pgr-view service and a cable system that digiilour pay-per-view events. Included in
legal and litigation in 2003 was a $3.8 millionafto settle a legal dispute partially offset byGillion of net favorable settlements.

Depreciation and Amortization 200 3 2002 better (worse)
$10. 5 $10.2 (3%)

Interest Expense 2003 2002 better (worse)
$0. 8 $0.8 -

The following reflects the amounts and percentdganges of certain significant interest income atheoitems:

Interest income and other, net 200 3 2002 better (worse)
Interest income $2 .0 $10.6 (81%)

Gain on sale / revaluation of warrants - - $10.6 (100%)
Impairment loss on equity investments (%0 .6) (%$2.9) 79%

The decrease in interest income is due to lowerageeinterest rates earned on our investments lhasva loss of approximately $1.6 million
from an investment in mortgage-backed securitiesirg fiscal 2002, we exercised and sold certairravds resulting in a $6.8 million gain.
In addition, as a result of our adoption of SFAS 83 in fiscal 2002, we recorded a $2.4 millioingaom the revaluation of these warrants,
and subsequent to our adoption of SFAS No. 133eeerded an additional increase of $1.4 milliothia revaluation of the warrants.

Provision for Income Taxes 200 3 2002 better (worse)
Provision $11 .0 $25.0 56%
Effective Tax Rate 40 2%  37.0%

The increase in the effective tax rate is due fotablosses generated in the current year which nod be deductible for tax purposes. We
have determined that it is more likely than nosthivsses will not be fully utilized and as suchk,hvave recorded a valuation allowance
against these benefits.

Discontinued Operations- XFL. Income from disconéd operations was $4.6 million for the fiscal yeaded April 30, 2002. The results
from fiscal 2002 reflected the reversal of shutdaeserves that were no longer required and thegretion of certain tax benefits.

Discontinued Operations- The World. In February208e closed the restaurant operations of our &ienent complex, The World, and in
April 2003, we closed the retail operation. As sule the operations of The World, as well as thiineated costs to shut down this business,
have been reflected in discontinued operationsr&erded an after-tax charge of $8.9 million in fimerth quarter related to the estimated
costs to shut down this facility. This amount ird#s, in addition to other costs, rental paymergaired under the lease, net of management's
current estimate of potential sub-rental incomes Téase expires on October 31, 2017.
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Loss from discontinued operations of The World,afdhcome taxes, was $26.7 million for the fisgahr ended April 30, 2003 as compared
to a loss from discontinued operations, net ofsaré$4.9 million for the fiscal year ended Af80, 2002. Included in fiscal 2003 was an
impairment charge of $32.9 million ($20.4 millicafter tax) as a result of impairment tests condliotegoodwill and other long-lived assets

related to The World.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2002 compared to Fiscal

Revenues 2002

Live & Televised $323.5
Branded Merchandise 86.1
Total $409.6

Year Ended April 30, 2001

2001 better (worse)

$335.7 (4%)
102.5 (16%)
$438.2 (7%)

The following chart reflects comparative revenued key drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

Live & Televised Revenues 2002
Live Events $74.1
Number of Events 237
Average Attendance 8,562
Average Ticket Price $35.69
Pay-Per-View $112.0
Number of Domestic Buys 7,135,464
Advertising $83.6
Ratings for Raw-TNN 4.6
Ratings for Raw-USA --
Ratings for SmackDown! 4.0
Sponsorship revenues $13.2

Television Rights Fees
Domestic $35.0
International $18.3

2001 better (worse)

$81.9 (10%)
212 12%
11,556 (26%)

$32.63 9%
$128.2 (13%)
8,010,400  (11%)
$90.3 (7%)

5.0 (8%)

6.3 -

46 (13%)
$12.5 6%
$20.9 68%
$14.3 28%

The following chart reflects comparative revenuea eertain drivers for selected businesses witbinbbanded merchandise segment:

Branded Merchandise Revenues 2002
Licensing $24.4
Merchandise $26.2
Per Capita Spending $8.48
Publishing $16.3
Net units sold 6,867,700
Home Video $13.6
Net units sold:
DVD 625,900
VHS 1,041,200
Internet Advertising $4.4
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2001 better (worse)
$35.6 (31%)
$28.9 (9%)
$8.29 2%

$17.0 (4%)
7,594,400 (10%)
$12.2 11%
167,900 273%

1,285,700 (19%)

$5.6 (21%)



Cost of Revenues 2002 2001 better (worse)

Live & Televised $194.2 $188.5 (3%)

Branded Merchandise 56.9 60.8 6%

Total $251.1 $249.3 (1%)
Profit Contribution Margin 39% 43%

The following chart represents comparative revermumgskey drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

Cost of Revenues -Live & Televised 2002 2001 better (worse)
Live Events $52.2 $60.9 14%
Pay-Per-View $425 $41.6 (2%)
Advertising $36.9 $39.7 7%
Television $49.6 $38.6 (28%)
Other $13.0 $ 7.7 (69%)

Profit Contribution Margin 40% 44%

The decrease in the profit contribution margin was primarily to the decrease in pay-per-view rexsn

The following chart reflects comparative revenuea eertain drivers for selected businesses witbinbbanded merchandise segment:

Cost of Revenues -Branded Merchandise 2002 2001 better (worse)
Licensing $ 9.8 $13.8 29%
Merchandise $22.6 $23.9 5%
Publishing $10.0 $ 9.7 (3%)
Home Video $ 94 $ 6.2 (52%)
Digital Media $ 5.0 $ 49 (2%)

Profit Contribution Margin 34% 38%

The decrease in the profit contribution margin was to the mix of product within the segments.

The following chart reflects the amounts and percbange of certain significant overhead items:

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2 002 2001 better (worse)

Staff related expenses $ 374 $37.8 1%

Legal and litigation 14.6 16.1 9%

Consulting and accounting fees 8.9 9.1 2%

Advertising and promotion expenses 9.4 5.4 (74%)

All other 28.0 281 -

Total SG&A $ 98.3 $96.5 (2%)
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 24% 22%

The increase in advertising and promotion expewseasdue primarily to our contractual agreementuecipase $7.0 million of advertising
time from a media company. This agreement was esieto in connection with our acquisition of cartassets of WCW, Inc. in March 20
and is in effect through June 2004. See "Liquidityl Capital Resources."

Depreciation and Amortization 2 002 2001 better (worse)
$ 10.2 $4.7 (117%)

The increase in depreciation and amortization weesid part to the accelerated write-off of approadety $2.1 million of architectual costs in
2002 related to our cancelled project in Las Vegasyell as higher depreciation and amortizatiteied to increased capital spending in
fiscal 2002 and 2001.
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Interest Expense 2002 2001  better (worse)
$0.8 $0.9 11%

The following reflects the amounts and percentdganges of certain significant interest income atheoitems:

Interest Income and Other, net 2002 2001 better (worse)
Interest Income $10.6 $15.3 (31%)

Gain on sale/Revaluation of warrants ~ $10.6 - --

Impairment loss on equity investments  ($2.9)

The decrease in interest income was a result aél@wverage interest rates in fiscal 2002. Duriagdi 2002, we exercised and sold certain
warrants resulting in a $6.8 million gain. In adfit as a result of our adoption of SFAS No. 138dcal 2002, we recorded a $2.4 million
gain from the revaluation of these warrants, armbequent to our adoption of SFAS No. 133, we remiah increase of $1.4 million in the
revaluation of the warrants.

Provision for Income Taxes 2002 2001 better (worse)
Provision $25.0 $38.1 34%
Effective Tax Rate 37.0% 37.2%

Discontinued Operations-XFL. Income from disconsidwperations of the XFL, net of minority interagtl income taxes, was $4.6 million

for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002 as comg@deea loss from discontinued operations of $46ilian for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2001. The results from fiscal 2002 reflected thesrsal of shutdown reserves that were no longerired and the recognition of certain tax
benefits. Included in the net loss for fiscal 2004s a loss from operations of $31.3 million andsslon the shutdown of $15.6 million. The
estimated shutdown costs consisted primarily df,demse and labor obligations, write-offs of e@ntfixed assets and accounts receivable anc
inventory write downs.

On June 12, 2000, NBC purchased approximately 2l®mnewly issued shares of our Class A commamlstat $13 per share for a total
investment of $30.0 million. As a result of theckgurchase, which was at a below market priceregerded a non-cash charge of $10.7
million, which was being amortized over 30 monthmortization of $3.7 million during fiscal 2001 weeflected in discontinued operations.
As a result of our decision to discontinue operatiof the XFL, we wrote off the remaining unamatizasset of $7.0 million which was also
reflected in discontinued operations. In May 2008,repurchased 2.3 million shares of our Classroon stock from NBC for $27.7
million.

Discontinued Operations - The World. Loss from digmued operations of The World, net of incomestgxwvas $4.9 million for the fiscal
ended April 30, 2002 as compared to $1.6 milliontfe fiscal year ended April 30, 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows from operating activities for the fisgahrs ended April 30, 2003 and 2002 were $21.liamiand $57.9 million, respectively, and
cash flows used for operating activities was $28iMlon for fiscal 2001. Cash flows provided by a@png activities from continuing
operations were $28.0 million in fiscal 2003 as paned to $76.5 million in fiscal 2002 and $62.0limil in fiscal 2001. Working capital,
consisting of current assets less current liabgitwas $275.1 million as of April 30, 2003 and &32million as of April 30, 2002.

Cash flows provided by investing activities wer®$million in fiscal 2003 and cash flows usedrimésting activities for the fiscal years
ended April 30, 2002 and 2001 were $22.7 milliod &&41.5 million, respectively. As of April 30, 2B0wve had approximately $102.4
million invested primarily in short-term municipsécurities and corporate paper which consistedariiynof AA or AAA rated instruments.
The maturities of these instruments are generatafterm of three months or shorter. In additivae,had approximately $40.2 million
invested in mutual funds, which primarily held Adehd AA rated instruments. Our investment policglésigned to assume a minimum of
credit, interest rate and market risk.

In fiscal 2003, we had capital expenditures of agpnately $10.6 million, consisting primarily ofgiial media equipment for our
wweshopzone.com web site, television equipmentbaniiding improvements. Capital expenditures focdis2004 are expected to be between
$7.5 million - $10.0 million, which includes a camrgion of our critical business and financial sysetelevision equipment and building
improvements.
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In March 2003, we acquired a film library and certather assets for $3.0 million from an unaffifidtprofessional wrestling organization. In

March 2001, we acquired certain assets of the WEANd including trade names, tape library and oititangible assets from a subsidiary of
AOL Time Warner for approximately $2.5 million. &udition, we incurred certain related costs to aeghese assets of approximately $6.6
million.

Cash flows used in financing activities for thecfisyear ended April 30, 2003 was $28.8 million aagh flows provided by financing
activities $6.8 million and $107.5 million for tliscal years ended April 30, 2002 and 2001, respelgt

In June 2003, our board of directors approved thyenent of a quarterly dividend of $0.04 per sharalbClass A and Class B common
shares.

In June 2003, we purchased approximately 2.0 mikibares of common stock from Viacom for approxetya$19.3 million.

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreeomater which we borrowed $12.0 million at an annntgrest rate of 7.6% to be repaid in
monthly installments over 15 years. This term lsacollateralized by our executive offices andv&®n production studio, both of which &
located in Stamford, Connecticut. The term loan matybe prepaid in whole or in part prior to ancbtigh January 1, 2006. Thereafter, the
term loan may be prepaid in whole with the payntérat premium. As of June 6, 2003, the outstandiirgcipal amount of the term loan was
$9.2 million.

In 2000 we entered into a lease agreement for 8 Ca®adair Challenger 604 airplane. The term afdiricraft lease is for twelve years
ending on October 30, 2012. The monthly lease paymaletermined by a floating rate, which is baspdn the 30-day US Commerical
Paper Rate as stated by the Federal Reserve ph&1The current monthly payment is approximatdl2(000. At the end of the term of 1
lease agreement, we have guaranteed the lessod2pat million if the jet is sold for less than @3nillion.

We have entered into various other contracts uwtiéh we are required to make guaranteed paymieictading:
o Performer contracts providing for future minimgomranteed payments.

o Television distribution agreements with Viacorfiliates UPN and TNN that provide for the paymehthe greater of a fixed percentage of
the revenues from the sale of television advedisime or an annual minimum payment. Our curremé@ent for UPN programming covers
two hours of programming every week and expireSéptember 2003. Under the terms of our new agreewitnUPN, which is effective
October 2003, we will receive a weekly rights feedur SmackDown! program and UPN would sell aliraff advertising time. The balance
of our Viacom agreement covers five hours of prograng every week and expires in September 2005.

0 Advertising commitments to a media company ovér@e year period, ending June 2004.
o Various operating leases for our offices.

o Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whiis for a seven-year term commencing in Octob801#hd in addition, a talent
contract which is co-terminous with his employmeontract.

o Employment contract with Linda E. McMahon, whisHor a four-year term commencing in October 199@suant to its terms, this
contract was renewed for an additional year.

o Employment contracts with certain of our emplsyeehich are generally for one to three year terms.
0 Service contracts with certain of our independemtractors, which are generally for one to foeayterms.
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Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undesalmntracts as of April 30, 2003 was as follows:

Payments due by period

($ in millions)

Less tha n After

1 year 1-3years 4-5years 5years Total
Long-term debt $0.8 $1.7 $19 $55 $ 9.9
Operating leases $3.0 $4.6 $4.2 $6.6 $18.4
Television programming agreements $12.8 $5.8 $24 $2.7 $237
Other commitments $34.4 $18.6 $7.8 $-- $60.8
Total Commitments from

Continuing Operations $51.0 $30.7 $16.3 $14.8 $112.8

Operating lease - The World (1) $25 $54 $57 $32.7 $46.3
Total $53.5 $36.1 $22.0 $47.5 $159.1

(1) Excludes any estimated sub-rental income.

We believe that cash generated from operationdrantexisting cash and short-term investments béllsufficient to meet our cash needs
over the next twelve months for working capitalagarly dividends, capital expenditures and stiatgyestments as well as costs related to
the shut down of The World.

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially affectgddasonal factors; however, because we operadiscal calendar, the number of pay-per-
view events recorded in a given quarter may vamaddition, revenues from our licensing and disadé of consumer products, including
through our catalogs, magazines and Internet sitag,vary from period to period depending on thieim® and extent of licensing
agreements and marketing and promotion progranesezhinto during any particular period of timewasl as the commercial success of the
media exposure of our characters and brand. Thegiof these events as well as the continued intcthdn of new product offerings and
revenue generating outlets can and will causeuhitan in quarterly revenues and earnings.

Inflation

During the past three fiscal years, inflation hashad a material effect on our business.
Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Critical Accounting Policies

We believe the following are the critical accougtjolicies used in the preparation of our finanstatements, as well as the significant
judgments and estimates affecting the applicaticdhase policies

Revenue Recognition

Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-per-view programming arerdembwhen the event is aired and are based upoimitial estimate of the number of
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atipinary buy information received from our pay-ww distributors. Final reconciliation
of the pay-per-view buys occurs within one year ang subsequent adjustments to the buys are remmjon a cash basis. As of April 30,
2003, our pay-per-view Accounts Receivable was®gdllion. If our initial estimate is incorrect, @an result in significant adjustments to
revenues in subsequent years.
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Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television advertisimgracorded when the commercial airs within our progning and are based upon
contractual amounts previously established withamwertisers. These contractual amounts are typicaked on the advertisement reachi
desired number of viewers. If an ad does not rélaetiesired number of viewers, we record an estichaserve to reflect rebates or future
free advertising due to advertisers, based onifferehce between the intended delivery (as cotatcand actual delivery of audiences. As
of April 30, 2003, our estimated reserve was $6il8an. If our estimated reserves are incorrecteraies in subsequent periods would hay
be adjusted.

Home Video:

Revenues from the sales of VHS and DVD titles aoerded when shipped by our distributor to whokssal retailers, net of an allowance for
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedtistry trends. As of April 30, 2003, our
home video returns allowance was $1.5 million. & @o not accurately predict returns, we may hawajost revenues in future periods.

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whppeshby our distributor to wholesalers / retailees, of an allowance for estimated
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatualme based upon our review of historical retutesand the expected performance of our
current titles in relation to prior issue returtea As of April 30, 2003, our newsstand returhswednce was $5.0 million. If we do not
accurately predict returns, we may have to adpsemues in future periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portionwfcurrent assets. We are required to estimatediectibility of our receivables and to
establish allowances for the amount of receivatiiaswe estimate to be uncollectible. We base taBeances on our historical collection
experience, the length of time our receivablesatstanding and the financial condition of indivadleustomers. As of April 30, 2003, our
allowance for doubtful accounts was $5.3 milliota@ges in the financial condition of significanstamers, either adverse or positive, could
impact the amount and timing of any additional\alaces that may be required.

Initial Adoption of Accounting Policies

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial AcdamgStandard ("SFAS") No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohigyed Assets." During 2003, the economic conditisagrounding our entertainment
complex in New York City and its continued weak i@ig results indicated potential impairment. Tingairment test prescribed by SFAS
No. 144 was performed and ultimately resulted moe-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $30.4 millioat tvas recorded in the current year.
In conjunction with the impairment test above, #sadetermined that goodwill related to the purcludSehe World was also impaired and ¢
result, we recorded an additional non-cash prestexge of $2.5 million in accordance with SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets".

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Actingrior Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes”. In February 2003, we
closed the restaurant operations at The World april 2003, we closed the retail operations atfiéwcility. Total costs related to the shut
down of these operations are estimated to be $Bli®mnet of applicable tax benefits of $3.3 ridh and were recorded as discontinued
operations in our consolidated financial statemantke current year, in accordance with SFAS Ni&. 1

Recent Pronouncements

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, "Resitin of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amemtime-FASB Statement No. 13,
and Technical Corrections." This Statement amersiieg authoritative pronouncements to make varimchnical corrections, clarify
meanings, or describe their applicability undemgjea conditions. This statement became effectivesmn May 1, 2003 and does not have a
material impact on our operating results or finahpbsition.
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In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretablo. ("FIN") 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Déstire Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Irefiiess of Others.” The disclosure requirementdNdo#b were effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods ending &tzember 15, 2002 and did not have a materiahatgm our consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, "Constitideof Variable Interest Entities." FIN 46 requsras to consolidate a variable interest
entity if we are subjected to a majority of thekrig loss from the variable interest entity's aitiéds or entitled to receive a majority of the
entity's residual returns, or both. We currenthske a corporate jet which is not held in a variaitierest entity, and, accordingly is accounted
for as an operating lease. We do not currently laayeinterests in variable interest entities ardpedingly do not expect the adoption of FIN
46 to have a material impact on our consolidatedrfcial statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task FoleE ) reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,eéfReArrangements with Multiple
Deliverables." EITF Issue No. 00-21 provides gumaaon how to account for arrangements that invtileedelivery or performance of
multiple products, services and/or rights to usetss The provisions of EITF Issue No. 00-21 wilbly to revenue arrangements entered into
in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003 adoption of this consensus is not expected te hawaterial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensussoe INo. 01-09, "Accounting for Consideration Gibgra Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor's Products}iisTconsensus addresses income statement chazatiterissues and recognition and
measurement issues relating to consideration diyemvendor to a customer. As a result of this pumcement, we reclassified $1.7 million
in fiscal 2003 and $1.3 million in fiscal 2002 a2@01 of discounts previously classified as expetsése prescribed accounting as a
reduction of revenue.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounfor Certain Financial Instruments with Charaistics of both Liabilities and
Equity." SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for Anwssuer classifies and measures in its baldrest sertain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equityisleffective for us in the second quarter of 204, because we have no instruments falling
under the provisions of SFAS No. 150, it will n@Me an impact on our consolidated financial statéme

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the "Safe ¢tafrovisions of the Private Securities LitigatiBeform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9®ovides a "safe harbor" for certain statemdmds are forwardeoking and are not bas:
on historical facts. When used in this Annual Rgpbe words "may," "will," "could," "anticipate;plan,” "continue," "project,” "intend",
"estimate”, "believe", "expect" and similar expiiess are intended to identify forward-looking stagnts, although not all forward-looking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectatiomsiatentions and are not historical facts
and accordingly involve known and unknown risks andertainties and other factors that may causadhel results or the performance by
us to be materially different from future resultgperformance expressed or implied by such forwaodting statements. The following
factors, among others, could cause actual resultdfer materially from those contained in forwdabking statements made in this Annual
Report, in press releases and in oral statemerds imaour authorized officers: (i) our failure twntinue to develop creative and entertaining
programs and events would likely lead to a dedlinde popularity of our brand of entertainmeni; ¢ur failure to retain or continue to
recruit key performers could lead to a declinehim appeal of our story lines and the popularitgufbrand of entertainment; (iii) the loss of
the creative services of Vincent McMahon could adely affect our ability to create popular chareztnd story lines; (iv) our failure to
maintain or renew key agreements could adversébgiabur ability to distribute our television andypper-view programming, and in this
regard our primary distribution agreement with \diacruns until Fall 2004 for its UPN network andIR4105 for its TNN network; (v) we
may not be able to compete effectively with compargroviding other forms of entertainment and progning, and many of these
competitors have greater financial resources then(wvi) we may not be able to protect our intellettproperty rights which could negatively
impact our ability to compete in the sports entarteent market; (vii) general economic conditionsaarhange in the popularity of our brand
of sports entertainment could adversely impactmsiness; (viii) risks associated with producing levents, both domestically and
internationally, including without limitation riskfiat our insurance may not cover liabilities réaglfrom accidents or injuries and that we
may be prohibited from promoting and conducting levents if we do not comply with applicable retjolss; (ix) uncertainties associated
with international markets; (x) we could incur stadial liabilities, or be required to conduct eéntaspects of our business differently, if
pending or future material litigation is resolved
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unfavorably; (xi) any new or complementary busiesssto which we may expand in the future couldemsiely affect our existing business
(xii) through his beneficial ownership of a subsi@mmajority of our Class B common stock, our e¢otling stockholder can exercise
significant influence over our affairs, and hiseirgsts could conflict with the holders of our ClAssommon stock; and

(xiii) a substantial number of shares will be dligifor future sale by our current majority stockies, and the sale of those shares could lower
our stock price. The forward-looking statementsagpenly as of the date of this Annual Report andugnreliance should not be placed on
these statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures @&out Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéate@n currency exchange rate, interest rateeguuity price risks that could impact our
results of operations. Our foreign currency exclearade risk is minimized by maintining minimal r@eisets and liabilities in currencies other
than our functional currency.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk related talebt and investment portfolio. Our debt primadbnsists of the mortgage related to our
corporate headquarters, which has an annual intextesof 7.6%. Due to the recent decreases ingage rates, this debt is now at a rate in
excess of market, however due to the terms of gigeament we are prohibited from refinancing foresalryears. The impact of the decrease
in mortgage rates is considered immaterial to omsolidated financial statements.

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of gowment obligations, highly rated corporate obligas and bond mutual funds, with a strong
emphasis placed on preservation of capital. Infontéo minimize our exposure to interest ratéyisur investment portfolio's dollar weight
duration is less than two years. Due to the naitioar investments and our strategy to minimizekatand interest rate risk, our portfolio
would not be materially impacted by adverse flutires in interest rates.

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Schate
The information required by this item is set fariithe Consolidated Financial Statements filed itk report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosures
None.

PART IlI

The information required by Part Ill (Items 10-1&14l5) is incorporated herein by reference to #yions "Directors and Executive Officers
of the Registrant", "Executive Compensation", "SggiOwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mgament and Related Stockholders
Matters and Certain Relationships and Related Faggsactions" and "Independent Auditor Fees" ind&finitive proxy statement for our
2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Iltem 14. Controls and Procedures

Based on their most recent review, which was cotaglevithin 90 days of the filing of this report,rahief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our disclescontrols and procedures are effective to ensateiriformation required to be disclosed
by us in the reports that we file or submit undher Eecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedcismulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed @aur Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate ffova timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and are effective to ensurestineh information is recorded, processed, summad@nd reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms. While weeiarthe process of formalizing certain of our cohprocedures, there were no significant
changes in our internal controls or in other fasthiat could significantly affect those controlbsequent to the date of this evaluation.
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Item 16. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedulesna Reports on Form 8-K

PART IV

(a) The following documents are filed as a patthef report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage -1 of this Report.

2. Exhibits:

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit

3.1

3.1A

3.2

3.2A

10.1

10.1A

10.2

10.2A

10.2B

10.3

10.3A

10.4

10.5

10.6

Amended and Restated Certificate of In
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-84327))

Amendment to Amended and Restated Cert
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
Registration Statement on Form S-8, fi

Amended and Restated By-laws (Incorpor
Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration Statem
333-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated By-L
reference to Exhibit 4.2(a) to our Reg
Form S-8, filed July 15, 2002).

1999 Long -Term Incentive Plan (Incorp
Exhibit 10.1 to our Registration State
333-84327))(the "LTIP").*

Form of Option Agreement granted durin
(filed herewith)*

Employment Agreement with Vincent K. M
1999 (Incorporated by reference to Exh
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No

Amendment, dated as of May 1, 2002, to
with Vincent K. McMahon.*

Form of Agreement for Restricted Perfo
during 2003 under the LTIP (filed here

Booking Contract with Vincent K. McMah
2000 (Incorporated by reference to Exh
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yea

Amendment, dated July 3, 2001, to Book
K. McMahon (Incorporated by reference
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fis
2001).*

Employment Agreement with Linda E. McM
1999 (Incorporated by reference to Exh
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No

Booking Contract with Linda E. McMahon
2000 (Incorporated by reference to Exh
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yea
2000).*

World Wrestling Entertainment Employee

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
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corporation
3.2 to our Registration

ificate of Incorporation
4.1(a) to our
led July 15, 2002).

ated by reference to
ent on Form S-1 (No.

aws (Incorporated by
istration Statement on

orated by reference to
ment on Form S-1 (No.

g 2003 under the LTIP

cMahon, dated October 14,
ibit 10.2 to our
. 333-84327)).*

Employment Agreement

rmance Stock Units granted
with).*

on, dated February 15,
ibit 10.3 to our Annual
r ended April 30, 2000).*

ing Contract with Vincent
to Exhibit 10.3A to our
cal year ended April 30,

ahon, dated October 14,
ibit 10.3 to our
. 333-84327)).*

, dated February 15,
ibit 10.5 to our Annual
r ended April 30,

Stock Purchase Plan
10.6 to our Annual Report
April 30, 2002).*



10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

License Agreement with inDemand, former
Choice L.L.C., dated as of January 20,
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to our Regist
Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)). (1)

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. Man
(filed herewith).*

Independent Contractor Agreement, dated
the Registrant and Communications Consu
herewith).*

Registration Rights Agreement, dated Au
between Invemed Catalyst Fund, L.P. and
Entertainment, Inc. (Incorporated by re
10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K
ended April 30, 2002).

Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of R
Agreement between TSI Realty Company an
Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Re
as of December 12, 1997 (Incorporated b
10.11 to our Registration Statement on
333-84327)).

Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Co
Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to
Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1997 (I
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Regis
Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)).

Environmental Indemnity Agreement among
Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial M
to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), dated a
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.

Assignment of Leases and Rents between
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigne
Estate, Inc.), dated as of December 12,
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to our Regis
Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)).

Form of Tax Indemnification Agreement a
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc., Vince
Vincent K. McMahon Irrevocable Deed of
30, 1999 (Incorporated by reference to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.

Agreement between WWF-World Wide Fund f
Sports, Inc. dated January 20, 1994 (In
to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration St
(No. 333-84327)).

ly known as Viewer's
1999 (Incorporated by
ration Statement on

agement Bonus Plan.

May 1, 2003, between
Itants, Inc. (filed

gust 30, 2001, by and
World Wrestling
ference to Exhibit

for the fiscal year

ents and Security

d GMAC Commercial
al Estate, Inc.), dated
y reference to Exhibit
Form S-1 (No.

mpany to GMAC
Citicorp Real Estate,
ncorporated by
tration Statement on

TSI Realty Company,
ortgage Corp. (assigned
s of December 12, 1997
0.13 to our
333-84327)).

TSI Realty Company and
d to Citicorp Real

1997 (Incorporated by
tration Statement on

mong the Registrant,
nt K. McMahon and the
Trust, dated as of June
Exhibit 10.15 to our
333-84327)).

or Nature and Titan
corporated by reference
atement on Form S-1

21.1 List of Significant Subsidiaries (filed herewith).
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewith).
99.1 Certification by Linda E. McMahon and P hilip B. Livingston pursuant

to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.

2002 (filed herewith).

(1) Certain portions of this exhibit have been éatitbased upon a request for confidential treatrilendtby the Company with the Secretary
of the Commission on August 25, 1999, as amendedataber 8, 1999. The omitted portion of this exHilas been separately filed with the
Commission.

(2) Certain portions of this exhibit have been ¢edtbased upon a request for confidential treatiiledtby the Company with the Secretary
of the Commission on September 14, 1999 as amesé€ittober 8, 1999. The Omitted portion of thisibitthas been separately filed with
Commission.
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K:
The Registrant filed a Form 8-K dated FebruaryZZ®)3 under Iltem 5, Other Events and Item 7, Firei&tatements and Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causeddiport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
(Registrant)

Dated: July 2, 2003 By: /s/ Linda E. MMhon

Li nda E. McMahon
Chi ef Executive Oficer

Dated: July 2, 2003 By: /s/ Philip B.Livingston

Philip B. Livingston
Chi ef Financial Oficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date

By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon Chairman of the Board of Directors July 2, 2003

Vincent K. McMahon

By: /s/ Linda E. McMahon Chief Exe cutive Officer and Director July 2, 2003

Linda E. McMahon

By: /s/ Lowell P. Weicker Jr. Director July 2, 2003

Lowell P. Weicker Jr.

By: /s/ David Kenin Director July 2, 2003
David Kenin
By: /s/ Joseph Perkins Director July 2, 2003

Joseph Perkins

By: /s/ Michael B. Solomon Director July 2, 2003

Michael B. Solomon

By: /s/ Philip B. Livingston Chief Fin ancial Officer
and Direc tor July 2, 2003
Philip B. Livingston
By: /s/ Frank G. Serpe Senior Vi ce President and
Chief Acc ounting Officer July 2, 2003

Frank G. Serpe
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CERTIFICATIONS
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-ladapted pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxi¢p#2002:
I, Linda E. McMahon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKVorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifie periods presented in this annual report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-1#he Registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoissure that material information relating te Registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inigh this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registraigtdosure controls and procedures as of a datena80 days prior to the filing date of this
annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusaimut the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures based on our evaluation as
of the Evaluation Date;

5. The Registrant's other certifying officers arithie disclosed, based on our most recent evatyatidghe Registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant's board of directors (aspas performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design oeogtion of internal controls which could adversaffect the Registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data awne toentified for the Registrant's auditors anyenat weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the Registrant's internal
controls; and

6. The Registrant's other certifying officers arithie indicated in this annual report whether drthere were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could signifidgreffect internal controls subsequent to the dditeur most recent evaluation, including any
corrective actions with regard to significant diefitcies and material weaknesses.

Dated: July 2, 2003
By: /s/ Linda E. MMahon

Li nda E. McMahon
Chi ef Executive Oficer
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[, Philip B. Livingston, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKVorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifie periods presented in this annual report;

4. The Registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-1#he Registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoissure that material information relating te Registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inigh this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registraigtdosure controls and procedures as of a daten\80 days prior to the filing date of this
annual report and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusaimut the effectiveness of the disclosure conatnts procedures based on our evaluation as
of the Evaluation Date;

5. The Registrant's other certifying officers arithie disclosed, based on our most recent evatyatidghe Registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant's board of directors (aspas performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design oeogtion of internal controls which could adversaffect the Registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data awne toentified for the Registrant's auditors anyenat weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the Registrant's internal
controls; and

6. The Registrant's other certifying officers arithie indicated in this annual report whether drthere were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could signifidgreffect internal controls subsequent to the dditeur most recent evaluation, including any
corrective actions with regard to significant diefitcies and material weaknesses.

Dated: July 2, 2003
By: /s/ Philip B.Livingston

Philip B. Livingston
Chi ef Financial Oficer
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Report of Management

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United States of
America. The integrity and objectivity of the datethese financial statements, including estimatesjudgments relating to matters not
concluded by year end, are the responsibility ofiagement, as is all other information includedhim Annual Report, unless otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements of World Wireg Entertainment, Inc. have been audited by iXel& Touche LLP, independent
auditors. Management has made available to Delgifeuche LLP, all of World Wrestling Entertainmeific.'s financial records and related
data, as well as the minutes of stockholders' @edtdrs' meetings. Furthermore, management baithag all representations made to
Deloitte & Touche LLP during its audit were validdaappropriate.

Management has established and maintains a sys$teteimal accounting control that provides reasd@assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the consolidated financial statengrthe protection of assets from unauthorized usksposition and the prevention and
detection of fraudulent financial reporting. Thacept of reasonable assurance recognizes thab$itie @f an internal accounting control
system should not exceed, in management's judgtienibenefits to be derived.

Management maintains disclosure controls and proesdhat are designed to ensure that informaégnired to be disclosed by World
Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. is recorded, procdssammarized and reported within the time pergabified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission's rules and forms.

Management also seeks to ensure the objectivityraadrity of its financial data by the carefulesstion of its managers, by organizational
arrangements that provide an appropriate divisiaesponsibility and by communication programs alragensuring that its policies,
standards and managerial authorities are undergitwodghout the organization. Management regulaudpitors the system of internal
accounting control for compliance.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors mgegsiodically with management and the independeditars to review the manner in
which they are performing their respective respaifises and to discuss auditing, internal accougttontrols and financial reporting matters.
The independent auditors periodically meet priyatath the Audit Committee and have access to thditCommittee at any time.

July 2, 2003

/'s/ Linda E. McMahon

Li nda E. McMahon
Chi ef Executive Oficer

/sl Philip B. Livingston

Philip B. Livingston
Chief Financial Oficer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Waklcestling Entertainment, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inte (tCompany”) as of April 30, 2003
and 2002 and the related consolidated statememisesbtions, stockholders' equity and comprehernso@me (loss) and of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended ApriPB03. Our audits also included the financialesteent schedule listed in the index at Item
15(a)1. These financial statements and financééstent schedule are the responsibility of the Goylls management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statenm@mdinancial statement schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with aud&iagdards generally accepted in the United Stdt@snerica. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtmassurance about whether the financial statsnaes free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidsnpporting the amounts and disclosures in then6iig statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of World Wrestling
Entertainment, Inc. as of April 30, 2003 and 2004 the results of its operations and its cash flmwgach of the three years in the period
ended April 30, 2003 in conformity with accountipgnciples generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when consideredatioa to the basic consolidated financial statetmi¢gken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therei

/sl Deloitte and Touche LLP
Stanford, Connecticut
June 13, 2003
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2003 2002

NELTEVENUES ..o e $374,264 $409,622
Cost Of reVeNUES ........ccvveeeeiiiiieeeie. 237,343 251,124
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...... 99,349 98,291
Depreciation and amortization ..................... 10,545 10,174
Operating iINCOME .....ooveveeeeiiiiiiiieee i, 27,027 50,033
Interest expense .........cccceeeeeeen. 783 784
Interest income and other, net 1,114 18,202
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes ......cccoccvevvvccenenes 27,358 67,451
Provision for income taxes .......cccccccvvcceeeees e 10,996 24,953
Income from continuing operations .........cceeee.. L 16,362 42,498
Discontinued Operations:

Loss from XFL operations, net of

taxes of $17,679 and minority interest ........ L - -

Estimated income (loss) on shutdown

of the XFL, net of taxes of $2,917

and $5,265 for fiscal 2002 and 2001,

respectively, and minority interest ........... L - 4,638

Income (loss) from discontinued

operations - XFL ...ccoovevviiiiiiiiiieees s -- 4,638

Loss from The World operations, net

of taxes of $16,359, $3,006 and

$999 for fiscal 2003, 2002

and 2001, respectively ......ccoovvvcceeeee e (26,691) (4,903)

Estimated loss on shutdown of The World,

net of taxes of $3,257 ....ccccocvvvvvceeeees (8,866) -

Loss from discontinued operations - The World .. s (35,557) (4,903)

Loss from discontinued operations .............. . . (35,557) (265)
Netincome (I0SS) ..ccovvevevviieiiiieiieeeees e $(19,195) $ 42,233
Earnings (loss) per common share-Basic:

Continuing operations .........ccccceveeveeeeees e, $ 023 $ 0.58

Discontinued operations .........cccceeceeveees. e $ (0.50) $ --

Netincome (I0SS) ...ooovvevvveeviecicieeeeee e $ (0.27) $ 0.58
Earnings (loss) per common share-Diluted:

Continuing operations .........ccccceveeveeeeees i $ 023 $ 0.58

Discontinued operations .........cccceeceeveee. e $ (0.50) $ --

Netincome (I0SS) ...ccovvevvveeviicicieeeeee e $ (0.27) $ 0.58

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents ..
Short-term investments .............cccceeeen.
Accounts receivable (less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $5,284 and $2,840
as of April 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) ..
Inventory, net ..o
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ......
Assets of discontinued operations ..............

Total current assets ..........cccceeeerenen.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT--NET ........cccoceeiniins

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiineis
OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS ...

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable ................o..... .
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .........
Deferred inCOMe .........cccovveeriiniecenns
Liabilities of discontinued operations .........

Total current liabilities ....................
LONG-TERM DEBT .....cocveeviiiiieeeiiiieeeennins
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Class A common stock: ($.01 par value;
180,000,000 shares authorized; 18,215,427
shares and 18,184,177 shares issued as of
April 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) .......

Class B common stock: ($.01 par value;
60,000,000 shares authorized;

54,780,207 shares issued as of
April 30, 2003 and 2002 ...........cccvenee

Treasury stock (2,578,769 shares
and 100,000 shares as of
April 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively) ....ccceveeeeiiniiiiiiiiies

Additional paid-in capital ....................

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ..

Retained earnings ..........ccccoeevveeeennns

Total stockholders' equity ...................

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands)

As of April 30,
2003 2002
$128,473 $ 86,396
142,641 207,407
........................ 49,729 63,762
839 1,451
18,443 15,760
........................ 21,129 44,256
........................ 361,254 419,032
........................ 59,325 59,214
12,055 9,055
4,623 8,051
........................ $ 437,257 $ 495,352
EQUITY
$ 777 $ 601
14,188 19,490
34,991 45,963
24,662 23,190
11,554 7,368
........................ 86,172 96,612
........................ 9,126 9,302
........................ 182 181
........................ 548 548
........................ (30,569)  (1,139)
........................ 297,315 296,938
. 243 (525)
74,240 93,435
........................ 341,959 389,438
........................ $437,257 $ 495,352

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(dollars and shares in thousands)

Accumul ated
Additional Othe r
Common Stock  Treasury Paid-in  Comprehe nsive Retained
Shares Amount Stock  Capital Income ( loss) Earnings Total

Balance, May 1, 2000 ..........cccceeveeenenne 68,167 $682 $ -- $222,535 $1 05 $35215 $258,537
Comprehensive income:

Net inCome ......cccceevvvvevvveeieeeeeeens -- -- -- - -- 15,987 15,987

Translation adjustment ... - - - - 1 75) - (175)

Unrealized holding loss, net of tax ......... - - - - 5 27) - (527)
Total comprehensive inCOme .............c.c..... 15,285
Issuance of common stock ............c.cocu..ee. 4,615 46 - 59,954 - - 60,000
Stock issuance costs ............. . - - - (534) - - (534)
Non-cash stock issuance charge ................. - - - 10,673 - - 10,673
Stock option charge .............. - - - 1,092 - - 1,092
Exercise of stock options ..............ccc..... 150 1 - 2,549 - - 2,550
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ..... - - - 256 - - 256
Balance, April 30, 2001 ........cccccocveiinnene 72,932 729 - 296,525 5 97) 51,202 347,859
Comprehensive income:

Net inCome ......ccccevvvvvvevveereeeeeeens -- -- -- - -- 42,233 42,233

Translation adjustment .... -- -- -- -- 37 -- 37

Unrealized holding gain, net of tax ......... -- -- -- -- 35 -- 35
Total comprehensive income ..................... 42,305
Purchase of treasury stock ..................... (100) -- (1,139 -- -- -- (1,139)
Exercise of stock options ...................... 32 - -- 413 -- -- 413
Balance, April 30, 2002 .........ccccevveennnn 72,864 729 (1,139) 296,938 5 25) 93,435 389,438
Comprehensive loss:

NE 0SS oo - - - - - (19,195) (19,195)

Translation adjustment ...................... -- - -- -- 3 22 -- 322

Unrealized holding gain, net of tax ......... -- - -- -- 4 46 -- 446
Total comprehensive 0SS ...........c.ccccu... (18,427)
Purchase of treasury stock ..................... (2,489) -- (29,554) - - - (29,554)
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock . 10 - 124 (47) - - 77
Exercise of stock options ..............cc..... 31 1 - 404 - - 405
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ..... - - - 20 - - 20
Balance, April 30, 2003 ...........cocveinene 70,416 $730 $(30,569) $ 297,315 $2 43  $74,240 $ 341,959

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

Year E nded April 30,
2003 2002 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (I0SS) INCOME ..ccvvveviiiiiicieceeees e ($19,195) $ 42,233 $ 15,987
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)
income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Loss from discontinued Operations ...............— L 35,557 265 48,539
Gain on sale of property and stock, and revaluat ion of warrants, net ............. - (5,287)  (1,249)
Cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle,
net of taX ...oovvveeeiiiieeeiee e - (1,487) -
Depreciation and amortization .................. 10,545 10,174 4,736
Amortization of deferred income ................ (1,268) (1,270) (407)
Provision for doubtful accounts ... 3,697 900 1,239
Provision for inventory obsolescence ........... 797 3,780 803
Stock option charges ..........cccccveeeeenen. - - 760
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes .. 1,650 (1,433) 2,235
Changes in assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ...ccoveevieeeeeeees 10,334 7,388 (12,936)
INVENLOTY oo . (185) (1,086) (2,196)
Prepaid expenses and other assets ......... . (614) 5,689 (3,906)
Accounts payable ............ccccceveenen.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities ....
Deferred income .........cccccvvevrennen.

Net cash used in discontinued operations

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities ...................

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipment ...........

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired .............

.................................. (5,302) 25 2,086
. 6,403 6,812
10,179 (454)

Net cash provided by continuing operation S et 28,032 76,473 62,049
.................................. (6,894) (18,587)  (85,403)
.................................. 21,138 57,886  (23,354)
.................................. (10,593) (12,499) (21,554)
(3,000) (4,900)  (4,155)
65,416 (13,070) (87,794)

Sale (purchase) of short-term investments, net .
Net proceeds from the sale of investments ...

..................................... -- 12,914 11,305

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing OpPerations .........cccccvveenns 51,823 (17,555) (102,198)
Net cash used in discontinued operations L (2,134) (5,179) (39,273)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing Operations ..........cccceveeens 49,689 (22,734) (141,471)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayments of long-term debt ........c.cceeeees (601) (556) (959)

Proceeds from capital lease agreement .......... . L 601 - -

Common stock issued, including treasury stock re issued,

net of stock issuance costs ................... - 59,466

Repurchase of Class A common stock ............. . (1,139) -

Proceeds from exercise of Stock Options ........ L 405 413 2,550
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing OPEerations .........cccccveeenns (29,072) (1,282) 61,057
Net cash provided by discontinued operati ONS Leeieiiiieeciie e 322 8,100 46,415
Net cash (used in) provided by financing aCtVItIeS ..ooovveeviiieeies (28,750) 6,818 107,472

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT S

41,970  (57,353)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD .... ..o 44,426 101,779

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD .......... . . 86,396 $ 44,426

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the period
for income taxes, net of refunds ..............
Cash paid during the period for interest .......

SUPPLEMENTAL NON-CASH INFORMATION:

Receipt of warrants ...........cccccovveernnes

.................................. $ 6,398 $ 7,741 $ 33,646
.................................. $ 783 $ 783 $ 856
.................................. $-- $- $ 2,884

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d
1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of World Wrestling Entertaimménc., and our wholly owned
subsidiaries. In 2003, we closed the operatiorsuoentertainment complex, The World. We recordhedresults from operations of this
business and the estimated shutdown cost as disgedtoperations. In early May 2001, we discontthaperations of the XFL and
accordingly, reported XFL operating results anéhestied shutdown costs as discontinued operations.

All significant intercompany balances have beemelated. Certain prior year amounts have beenssifiad to conform with the current ye
presentation.

We are an integrated media and entertainment copnpancipally engaged in the development, producaind marketing of television
programming and live events and the licensing athel af branded consumer products featuring our tMaftestling Entertainment brand of
entertainment. Our continuing operations are omgharound two principal activities:

o Live and televised entertainment, which consi§is/e event and television programming. Revent@ssist principally of attendance at live
events, sale of television advertising time anchspeships, domestic and international televisights fees and pay-per-view buys.

o Branded merchandise, which consists of licenaimdydirect sale of merchandise. Revenues includs shconsumer products through third
party licensees and direct marketing and salesenéinandise, magazines and home videos.

Our discontinued operations consisted primarilfoofd and beverage and retail revenues generateddup entertainment complex and
revenues from attendance at live events, sald@fisgon advertising time and sales of consumedpets from the XFL.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financiaiesteents in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles requires our
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiéttthe reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stagets and the reported amounts of revenue and expénsing the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Fiscal Period - Our fiscal year ends on April 3@&ath year. Unless otherwise noted, all referetwcgsars relate to fiscal years, not calendar
years and refer to the fiscal period by using tharyn which the fiscal period ends. Our fiscalrtgrs are thirtee-week periods that end on
the thirteenth Friday in the quarter, with the gat@m of our fourth quarter, which always ends qriA30.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivateiude cash on deposit in overnight deposibacts and investments in money
market accounts.

Short-term Investments- We classify all of our $fierm investments as available-for-sale securiegh short-term investments consist
primarily of United States government and fedegarecies securities, corporate commercial papepotate bonds, mutual funds and
mortgage-backed securities, all of which are statedarket value, with unrealized gains and lossesuch securities reflected, net of tax, as
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholasrsity. Realized gains and losses on short-termsimvents are included in earnings and
are derived using the specific identification metiior determining the cost of securities sold. Aépril 30, 2003, the fair value of our short-
term investments were approximately $148 greatar ttost and as of April 30, 2002, the fair values %818 lower than cost. We recorded
unrealized income (losses) of $446, net of taxed, ${163), net of taxes, for 2003 and 2002, resgyt which was included in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). It is our interthaintain a liquid portfolio to take advantageénvestment opportunities; therefore, all
securities are considered to be available-for-satkare classified as current assets.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable relaitgcjpally to amounts due to us from pay-per-viewyiders and television networks for
pay-per-view presentations and television programgmiespectively and balances due from the salel@fision advertising, videotapes and
DVDs and magazines. Our receivables represenniisant portion of our current assets. We are iexglito estimate the collectibility of our
receivables and to establish allowances for theustnaf receivables that we estimate to be uncaliectWe base these allowances on our
historical collection experience, the length ofeiour receivables are outstanding and the finacoiadlition of individual customers.

Inventory - Inventory consists of merchandise soida direct sales basis, and videotapes and DVBishvare sold through wholesale
distributors and retailers. Substantially all of cowentory is comprised of finished goods. Inventis stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out basis) or market. The valuation of our invelg®requires management to make market estimatessisg the quantities and the prices at
which we believe the inventory can be sold.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipmenstated at historical cost less accumulated degtfeniand amortization. Depreciation
and amortization is computed on a straight-lindsbager the estimated useful lives of the asseta/ben applicable, the life of the lease,
whichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipment apgetgated based on estimated useful lives varyioig three to five years. Buildings and
related improvements are amortized over the lesfstiie remaining useful life of the buildings oethnticipated life of improvements.

Leased Property Under Capital Leases - Propertgrucapital leases is amortized over the shorténefives of the respective leases or the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets - In May 2002, weopted SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the ImpairmenDisposal of Long-Lived
Assets". In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we péaly evaluate the carrying value of long-livedets when events and circumstances
warrant such a review. During 2003, the economiw@@mns surrounding our entertainment complex awNvork City, The World, and its
continued weak operating results indicated poteimipairment. In accordance with the prescribedaating, an impairment test was
performed which ultimately resulted in a non-casttfax impairment charge of $30,392 that was remid 2003 and reflected in
discontinued operations.

Income Taxes - We account for income taxes in azoare with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, "Accagpffor Income Taxes." Our
deferred provision was determined under the asgkliability method. Under this method, deferrededs and liabilities are recognized based
on differences between financial statement andnirectax basis of assets and liabilities using pitsenacted tax rates. Valuation allowan
are established to reduce deferred tax assets iwvisemore likely than not that some portion orclthe deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We consider estimated future taxablermeand ongoing tax planning strategies in asse#isengeed for valuation allowances.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generally recognized when productsh@zped or as services are performed. Howeverialtiee nature of several of our
business lines, there are additional steps indtiertue recognition process, as described below.

Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-per-view programming arerdsmbwhen the event is aired and are based upoinigat estimate of the number of
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based @tipinary buy information received from our pay-wew distributors. Final reconciliation
of the pay-per-view buys generally occurs withire gear and any subsequent adjustments to the berysa@gnized on a cash basis.

Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television advertisirgracorded when the commercial airs within our progning and are based upon
contractual amounts previously established withaalwertisers. These contractual amounts are typicased on the advertisement reachil
desired number of viewers. If an ad does not réfaeldesired number of viewers, we record an estichaserve to reflect rebates or future
free advertising due to advertisers, based oniffexehce between the intended delivery (as cotathcand actual delivery of audiences.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d

Licensing:
Licensing revenues are recognized upon receipbtiéa by the individual licensees as to license fige. If we receive licensing advances,
such payments are deferred and recognized as inonrae as earned basis.

Home Video:
Revenues from the sales of VHS and DVD titles aoerded when shipped by our distributor to whokssal retailers, net of an allowance for
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedtistry trends.

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whppeshby our distributor to wholesalers / retailees, of an allowance for estimated
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatame based upon our review of historical retuates and the expected performance ol
current titles in relation to prior issue returtesa

Advertising Expense-- Advertising costs are expdraseincurred, except for costs related to the [dpweent of a major commercial or media
campaign which are expensed in the period in wiiehcommercial or campaign is first presented.

Foreign Currency Translation - For translationhd financial statements of our Canadian and Uidiaddom subsidiaries, we have
determined that the Canadian Dollar and the U.Kindaare the functional currencies. Assets andliiigsi are translated at the year-end
exchange rate, and income statement accountsaaisddied at average exchange rates for the yeameBhlting translation adjustments are
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive incamemponent of stockholders' equity. Foreign awydransactions are recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date.

Stock-Based Compensation-- We account for stockédasmpensation using the intrinsic value methogrescribed under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No 25, "Accountifigr Stock Issued to Employees,” and related imatgpions. Under this method, no
compensation expense is recognized when the nuofilsbiares granted is known and the exercise pfitdgecstock option is equal to or
greater than the market price of our stock on taatgdate. We follow the disclosure-only provisia@isStatement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 148, "Accounting for StocksBd Compensation - Transition and Disclosure", SIS No. 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation." SFAS Nos. 148 and 1@3ueage, but do not require, companies to adoair ¥dlue based method for
determining expense related to stock-based compeng&ee Note 11).

Pro Forma Fair Value Disclosures

The fair value of options granted to employeesciiié amortized to expense over the option vegiargpd in determining the pro forma
impact, is estimated on the date of the grant ugiad3lack-Scholes option-pricing model with thédwing assumptions:

April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Expected life of option ......ccccoovvvvveveeeee. L 3 years 3 years 3y ears
Risk-free interestrate .......cccovvvevevveeeeee Ll 2.5% 3.4% 4.5%
Expected volatility of our common stock ............ .. 38% 67% 71%

2003 2002 20 01
Weighted average fair value per share of
each option granted to employees .................. ... $ 3.73 $6.48 $ 7.21
Total number of options granted to employees ...... ... 1,219,000 5,000 1,481 ,200
Total fair value of all options
granted to employees .......cccceevvvevcceeneee Ll $ 4,548 $ 32 $ 10 677

Had compensation expense for our stock options emgnized based on the fair value on the gratet @iader the methodology prescribed
by SFAS No0.123, our income from continuing operagiand basic and diluted earnings from
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d
continuing operations per common share for 200822hd 2001 would have been impacted as showreifottowing table:

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 200 1

Reported income from continuing operations ........ L $16,362 $42,498 $ 64, 526
Pro forma income from continuing operations ....... L $12,760 $37,105 $156, 438
Reported basic and diluted earnings from

continuing operations per common share ........... L. $023 $058 $ 0 .90
Pro forma basic and diluted earnings

from continuing operations per common share ..... . ... $018 $051 $ 0 .78

In accordance with SFAS No0.123, the weighted avefan value of stock options granted to employeas based on a theoretical statistical
model using assumptions. In actuality, becausestmak options are not traded on any exchange, gregsocan receive no value nor derive
any benefit from holding stock options under thelses without an increase in market price of oungwn stock. Such an increase in stock
price would benefit all stockholders commensurately

Derivative Instruments - We recognize all derivasias either assets or liabilities in the balaheetand measure those instruments at fair
value. In the first quarter of fiscal 2002, we a@pSFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instrents and Hedging Activities", and as a
result, recorded an increase to income from com@aperations of $1,487, net of taxes. Subsecweotr initial adoption of SFAS No. 133,
in fiscal 2002, we also recorded a $1,414 incréasecome from continuing operations based on évaluation of these derivatives.

Goodwill & Other Intangible Assets - In July 20FAS No. 141 "Business Combinations" and SFAS Ma."Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets" were released. We elected ty adopt SFAS No. 142 as of May 1, 2001. As requlvg SFAS No. 142, we performed an
impairment test on intangible assets as of the timtopgate and on goodwill within six months frone ttlate of adoption. We completed this
transitional impairment test and deemed that naimgent loss existed. During 2003, the economidi@mns surrounding The World, and
continued weak operating results indicated poteimipairment of the site's long-lived assets anddydll. As a result of the indicated
impairment, a valuation was performed on the gi @timately resulted in the recording of a writewn of the long-lived assets and our
goodwill related to the purchase of the site. Thigeadown of the goodwill resulted in a non-casb-pax impairment charge of $2,533 that
was recorded in 2003. As of April 30, 2003 and 2002 had intangible assets with a book value of@82and $9,055, respectively. We will
continue to perform impairment tests annually ah@mever events or circumstances occur indicatiagititangible assets might be impaired.

Discontinued Operations - In June 2002, the FASBdd SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associat#d Exit or Disposal Activities".

In February 2003, we closed the restaurant operatd The World and in April 2003, we closed thait@perations at the facility. Total co
related to the shut down of these operations ammat®d to be $8,866, net of applicable tax bes@iit$3,257 and were recorded as
discontinued operations in 2003, in accordance $FAS No. 146. Prior to the adoption of SFAS N&,Me accounted for our discontinued
XFL operations in accordance with Accounting Priites Board Opinion ("APB") No. 30, "Reporting thedrilts of OperationsReporting th
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business,E&tidhordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurrifgents and Transactions”. Total
income (loss) related to our discontinued XFL opers were $4,638 and ($46,910) for 2002 and 26#xpectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In April 2002,EASB issued SFAS No. 145, "Rescission of FASBeatents No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Correctlofnkis Statement amends existing authoritativerxpumcements to make various
technical corrections, clarify meanings, or degetleir applicability under changed conditions.sTétatement became effective for us on
1, 2003 and does not have a material impact omperrating results or financial position.
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World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretabio. ("FIN") 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Désure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Iretlidss of Others.” The disclosure requirementsNdo#b were effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods ending &trember 15, 2002 and did not have a materiah@inpn our consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, "Constitideof Variable Interest Entities." FIN 46 requsres to consolidate a variable interest
entity if we are subjected to a majority of the&krid loss from the variable interest entity's aitiids or entitled to receive a majority of the
entity's residual returns, or both. We currenthske a corporate jet, which is not held in a vaeafilerest entity, and accordingly, is accounted
for as an operating lease. We do not currently lzayeinterests in variable interest entities aedpedingly do not expect the adoption of FIN
46 to have a material impact on our consolidatedrftial statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task FoleE F) reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,eReyArrangements with Multiple
Deliverables." EITF Issue No. 00-21 provides gumaaon how to account for arrangements that invtileedelivery or performance of
multiple products, services and/or rights to usets The provisions of EITF Issue No. 00-21 wilbly to revenue arrangements entered into
in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003 &toption of this consensus is not expected te hawaterial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensussue INo. 01-09, "Accounting for Consideration Gibgra Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor's Productsjiisiconsensus addresses income statement charatterissues and recognition and
measurement issues relating to consideration diyemvendor to a customer. As a result of this pomcement, we reclassified $1,697,
$1,303 and $1,347 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 20Gheetively, of discounts previously classified agenses to the prescribed accounting as a
reduction of revenue.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounfor Certain Financial Instruments with Charaistics of both Liabilities and
Equity." SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for Aowssuer classifies and measures in its baldrext sertain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equityisleffective for us in the second quarter of 2084, because we have no instruments falling
under the provisions of SFAS No. 150, it will n@Me an impact on our consolidated financial statéme

3. Earnings Per Share
For purposes of calculating basic and diluted egsper share, we used the following weighted ayeec@ammon shares outstanding:

For the years ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin g:
Basic 70,621,898 72,861,797 72,025, 222
Diluted 70,623,129 72,865,624 72,216, 870
Dilutive effect of outstanding options 1,231 3,827 191, 648
Anti-dilutive outstanding options 6,869,450 5,306,750 5,454, 500

4. Intangible Assets

In March 2003, we acquired a film library and certather assets for $3,000 from an unaffiliatedf@seional wrestling organization. We h:
classified these costs as intangible assets ahdmwilrtize them over the expected period of, and in
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proportion to, the expected revenues to be deffinaad this film library. In March 2001, we acquiredbstantially all of the intellectual
properties and certain other assets of World Changbiip Wrestling (the "WCW"), including trade namipe library and other intangible
assets from a subsidiary of AOL Time Warner for5$D, In addition, we incurred certain related céstacquire these assets of approxime
$6,600. We have classified these costs as intangdets with an indefinite life.

5. Investments

Short-term investments consisted of the following:

April 30, 2003
Unrealized Fair
Cost Holding Gain Value
Government obligations .............ccccceeeeee. $ 63,755 $ $ 63,755
Mutual funds .......ccooeieiiiiiieiies 40,027 148 40,175
Corporate obligations and other .................. 38,711 -- 38,711
Total .o $142,493 $ 148 $142,641
April 30, 2002
Unrealized Fair
Cost Holding Loss  Value
Government obligations ..............cccccccue.... $ 26,725 $ - $ 26,725
Corporate obligations and other .................. 129,763 (518) 129,245
Mortgage backed securities ..............cc....... 51,437 - 51,437
Total oo $207,925 $ (518) $207,407

In 2003, we recorded to interest income and ofhetr,an impairment charge of approximately $618teel to certain stock we held. In
addition to the short-term investments includedvabave received warrants from four publicly tradednpanies with whom we had either
licensing or program distribution agreements. Tétéreated fair value of the warrants relating tostheontracts on the date of receipt
aggregated approximately $5,237. In connection thighadoption of SFAS 133, in 2002, we recordedrawdative effect adjustment of
$1,487, net of taxes. Subsequent to the adoptiemesorded a $1,414 increase to income from continoperations based on the revaluation
of these warrants. These warrants were then erelreisd the related stock was sold, generating gaietof $6,757. Additionally, we wrote
down the carrying value of certain of our other mmats deemed impaired to zero, resulting in a ahafg2,884. Each of the charges noted
above were recorded in interest income and otletr during 2002.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

April 30,
2003 2002
Land, buildings and improvements .................. ... $51,051  $51,905
Equipment .......ccoceeiiiiiiiiieee e, . 40,332 37,408
Vehicles .....ccevviiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 639 769
Property under capital lease ...................... 1,515 --
93,537 90,082
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization ...........cocceeeeeiennnen. 34,212 30,868
Total oeeeiieeieeeee e ... $59,325  $59,214
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7. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consistetti@following:

8. Debt

Accrued pay-per-view event costs

Accrued settlement offer

Accrued income taxes

Accrued talent royalties

Accrued payroll related costs

Accrued television costs
Accrued other

Debt as of April 30, 2003 and 2002 consisted offtilewing:

Mortgage loan agreement ............cccceeeveeenne
Obligation under capital lease

Less current portion

Long-term debt

April 30,
2003 2002
$5580 $6,047
3,750 -
5,173 6,224
759 2,094
2,359 2,116
3,364 13,076
14,006 16,406
$34,991  $45,963
April 30,
2003 2002
$9,302 $9,903
601 -
9,903 9,903
777 601
$9,126 $9,302

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreeomaer which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual isteege of 7.6%. Principal and inter
are to be paid in 180 monthly installments of agprately $112. The loan is collateralized by oue@xtive offices and television studio in

Stamford, Connecticut.

Interest expense for this loan was $783, $784 &6 $or 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In July 2002, we entered into a capital lease gearent related to certain computer equipment. Baearrying amount of our capitalized
lease equipment is $822 as of April 30, 2003. Hasé¢ bears an effective interest rate of 6.5% mpides in June, 2007.

As of April 30, 2003, the scheduled principal reqpaynts under our debt obligations were as follows:

Year Ending April 30,
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9. Income Taxes

For 2003, 2002 and 2001, we were taxed on our iecioom continuing operations at an effective tae & 40.2%, 37.0% and 37.2%,
respectively. Our income tax provision related tio imcome from continuing operations for fiscal 302002 and 2001 was $10,996, $24,953,
and $38,143 respectively, and included federate stad foreign taxes. Including our loss from digoaied operations of The World and the
XFL, our (benefit) provision for income taxes wd8,$20), $19,030 and $14,200 for 2003, 2002 and 2@spectively.

The components of our tax provision from continuapgrations were as follows:

Year ended April 30,

200 3 2002 2001
Current:
Federal ......c.ccoooevviinnnnnn. $5,9 90 $21,456 $32,446
State and local ................... 1,0 57 3,129 3,062
Foreign .....cccccveveeeeennnnn. 2,2 99 1,801 400
Deferred:
Federal .....cccccccvvvveeeennnnnn. 1,4 30 (1,224) 1,961
State and local ................... 2 02 (225) 271
Foreign ......coccoeeeeiiienenn. 18 16 3
Total oo $10,9 96  $24,953 $38,143

Our (benefit) provision for income taxes from cowing operations and discontinued operations wésllasvs:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Provision for income taxes
from continuing operations ............ $10,9 96 $24,953 $38,143
Benefit for income taxes
from discontinued operations .......... (19,6 16) (5,923) (23,943)
Total (benefit) provision for
iNnCome taxes .......c.cccoeeeevveenne $(8,6 20) $19,030 $ 14,200

The following sets forth the difference betweenphavision for income taxes from continuing opeyat computed at the U.S. federal
statutory income tax rate of 35% and that repditedinancial statement purposes:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% ...... $ 95 75 $23,608 $35934
State and local taxes, net of
federal benefit ...........ccceeee 5 32) 2,024 3,080
Foreign .....cccveeeeeiiieiis 1 12 136 140
Valuation allowance .................... 2,0 25 -- -
Other ..o, 1 84) (815) (1,011)
Provision for income taxes ............. $10,9 96 $24,953 $38,143

The state tax benefit for 2003 is comprised ofestatd local taxes, net of federal benefits, redlgetthe reversal of a tax reserve established
in prior years. The tax reserve is no longer neargssue to the conclusion of various state exantnat

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tazeis and deferred tax liabilities of continuing
operations consisted of the following:
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April 30,
2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:

Accounts receivable ...........cceceeeeeee. L $ 2,759 $ 1,110
INVENLONIES wvvvvvviiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeceee 464 1,093
Prepaid royalties .......ccoccevvcceeeene 3,479 3,217
StOCK OPtiONS eevvviviiiieieeeeeeeieeeeeeeee 4,286 4,993
INVEStMENtS ..o 3,736 2,625
Intangible assets ..........ooevcvvveeee. L 786 857
Accrued liabilities and reserves ............. . ... 4,516 2,994
FOreign ... 47 65

Valuation allowance ........ccccoceeveeveeeeee L. (2,437) (412)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets and depreciation ........c....... ... 4,465 1,307
Prepaid royalties .......ccocccevvceeeene - 490

Total, net ...ccooovvvviciiiieeeeee $13,171  $14,745

The temporary differences described above reprebffatences between the tax basis of assetslitifias and their reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements that will reguliaxable or deductible amounts in future yearsmthe reported amounts of the assets or
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of Apr@l,2003 and 2002, $11,194 and $9,543, respectigéihe net deferred tax assets are included
in prepaid expenses and other current assets anériaining $1,977 and $5,202, respectively, aded in other non-current assets in our
consolidated balance sheets.

As of April 30, 2003, and April 30, 2002 we haduwation allowances of $2,437 and $412, respectitceteduce our deferred tax assets to an
amount more likely than not to be recovered. THaat@on allowances primarily relate to the defertaxi assets arising from losses on
investments which are capital in nature for whioh tealization is uncertain. A majority of theseital loss carry forwards expire in 2008.

U.S. Federal income taxes have not been providathoemitted earnings of our foreign subsidiary,aese our intent is to keep such earnings
indefinitely reinvested in the foreign subsidiamgfserations.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases, performance contraittsarious performers, employme
agreements with certain executive officers, adsigi commitments and agreements with Viacom andedri?aramount Network ("UPN™)
which guarantee a minimum payment for advertisindrd) their terms. Our current agreement with URNires in September 2003 at which
time we will no longer sell advertising time on tieéevision shows aired on UPN. Commencing in Oetd903, under the terms of our new
agreement with UPN, we will receive a rights feedar programming.

In addition, we have a lease agreement for a 133tadair Challenger 604 airplane. The term of timgaft lease is for twelve years ending
on October 30, 2012. The monthly lease paymerthieraircraft lease is determined by a floating rathich is based upon 30-day
commerical paper rate as stated by the FederahRepkis 1.95%. Total principal payments under lsése are $22,500. As of April 30,
2003, our outstanding principal balance was $20,369
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Future minimum payments as of April 30, 2003 urttieragreements described above were as follows:

Operating Le ase Other

Year Ending April 30, Commitment s Commitments  Total
2004 $ 2,963 $47,241 $ 50,204
2005 2,338 24,362 26,700
2006 2,268 10,279 12,547
2007 2,140 2,544 4,684
2008 2,075 169 2,244

Thereafter 6,608 - 6,608
Total oo $18,392 $84,595 $102,987

Rent expense under operating leases from contirapegations was approximately $2,402, $2,228 andd®ifor 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

In addition, we have an operating lease for spaddeiw York City that is currently unoccupied whishas related to our former entertainment
complex, The World. We are currently seeking a ®umant. The total payments remaining on the leaspproximately $46,000 as of April
30, 2003. However, in accordance with SFAS No. Wshave reduced this accrual by our current estiffitet sub-tenant rental income of
approximately 75% of the remaining payments onehse (see Note 17).

Legal Proceedings
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Nature artsl American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fund (dettively, the "Fund") instituted legal
proceedings against us in the English High Cowgkisg injunctive relief and unspecified damagesafteged breaches of a 1994 agreement
between the Fund and us regarding the use of iti@sri'wwif" including (i) the wwf.com and wwfshopne.com internet domain names and
in the contents of various of our websites, andofiir "scratch" letter logo. On August 10, 200% thal judge granted the Fund's motion for
summary judgment, holding that we breached thagsadgreement by using the "wwf" website addreasésscratch logo. That ruling
subsequently was upheld by the English Court ofeétsm Since November 10, 2002, we have been subjectinjunction barring us, either
on our own or through our officers, servants, agiesubsidiaries, licensees or sub licensees, mwuig®n or other affiliates or otherwise, of
most uses of the initials "wwf," including in coratien with the "wwf" website addresses and theaf¢be scratch logo.

In compliance with the injunction, we have takea thllowing significant steps, many of which go bay the literal requirements of the
injunction; (1) changed our name to "World Wreglintertainment, Inc.”; (2) switched our initiabs"WWE"; (3) revised our logo to be a
scratch "WW"; (4) incorporated these changes iatoong other things, our television and pay-per-\séaws, promotional materials,
advertising campaigns, statutory filings with fealeand state agencies, and corporate stationergapadrate facilities; (5) advised our
licensees and business partners of the terms dfijiingction; and (6) directed our licensees andrimss partners to refrain from using the
initials "wwf" in any manner which, if done by uspuld be a breach of any of the prohibitions ofitfjanction. However, the elimination of
certain historical uses of the scratch logo, inclgdspecifically, WWE's archival video footage taining the scratch logo during the period
1998-May 2002 and the scratch logo embedded inranogning code of WWE-licensed video games createihglthe period 1999-2001 is,
as a practical matter, not possible. On an apicdor relief by our videogame licensee, THQ/JaRkgific LLC ("THQ/Jakks"), the English
Court of Appeals ruled that THQ/Jakks' marketind aale of games with embedded references to ttialsnlwwf" is not a breach of the
injunction and would not constitute a contemptaidnt by either THQ/Jakks or us.
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The Fund also has pending before the trial coderaages claim associated with the Company's use égfitials "wwf." Although the Fund
has never submitted a formal claim of damagesdatiurt, the Fund has claimed in correspondencdeathaast $360 million would be
required to fund a multi-year media advertising paign to remedy the Fund's alleged loss of recmyréxclusivity as a result of our use of
the initials "wwf." In that correspondence, the Buthrough its Legal Advisor, demanded a paymei®S&f million prior to the injunction
compliance date to settle its alleged damages slaimd resolve all remaining issues. We vigorousjgated the Fund's demand and contend
that the Fund's tactics were a bad faith attempb&sce us into an unwarranted cash payment ofi$8ion. Indeed, despite repeated inqui
by us, the Fund has never provided us with any mh@ciiation or support for any alleged damage claimshas the Fund come forward with
any evidence throughout the entire litigation hatiffered any actual injury to its fundraisingddor environmental conservation activities as
a result of our conduct. We strongly dispute thatFund has suffered any such damages. We arecuogtnledict the outcome of any
adjudication of the Fund's claims in an Englishredfuhe Fund were actually to present a damaggmc An unfavorable outcome of the
Fund's damages claims, however, may have a madeialse effect on our financial condition or résof operations.

Shenker & Associates

On November 14, 2000, Stanley Shenker & Associ#ttesfiled a complaint against us in Superior Gpdudicial District of
Stamford/Norwalk, Connecticut, relating to the teration of an Agency Agreement between us and #ffaiRlaintiff seeks compensatory
damages and punitive damages in an unspecified mtirettorneys' fees, an accounting and a declagratdgment. On December 15, 2000,
we filed a motion to strike all the claims against with the exception of one count for breachafttact. The motion was granted as to two
claims. On March 27, 2001, the Plaintiff filed dstituted complaint reasserting all counts agaissOn April 11, 2001, we answered the
substitute complaint. On February 27, 2002, wealfdenended counterclaims and on June 19, 2002 Jedesiecond amended counterclaims
alleging tortuous interference with business refedj conversion, fraud and conspiracy in connedatiitin the Plaintiff's solicitation and rece
of improper payments from various of our licens&&s.February 14, 2003, we filed a complaint agadmet of our former officers, and cert;
entities related to him, claiming such officer papated with Shenker in an alleged scheme to ackvaprtain licenses in exchange for
payments to the officer. That suit has been codat#d with the suit pending against us. Discoveryé consolidated cases has been exte
through September 2003. We have denied liabilityiatend to defend the action vigorously. An unfalae outcome of this suit may have a
material adverse effect on our financial condittwnesults of operations.

Marvel Enterprises

On October 19, 2001, we were served with a complairMarvel Enterprises, Inc. in the Superior CafrEulton County, Georgia alleging
that we breached the terms of a license agreeragatding the rights to manufacture and distribogesiction figures of various wrestling
characters. The plaintiff seeks damages and ard¢iola that the agreement is in force and effect.filéd our Answer on November 19, 20
The Complaint also named as a defendant Universastling Corp. ("Universal, Inc."), formerly knovas World Championship Wrestling,
Inc. Due to a conflict between Universal, Inc. ghaintiff's counsel, by agreement of the partiesversal, Inc. was dismissed from the suit.
On December 28, 2001, the plaintiff commenced arsgp action against Universal, Inc., filed in #agne court as a related action to the suit
pending against us. We are defending Universal,ilmconnection with these claims. The two suitgehbeen consolidated for discovery and
trial. On December 14, 2001, we filed a motioniendss all claims against us. That motion was dkpie March 14, 2002. On May 15, 2003
we filed a motion for summary judgment on all clairniversal similarly filed a motion for summandgment on all claims against us. Oral
argument in respect of both motions for summarginent have been scheduled for July 25, 2003. We Hamied liability and intend to
defend the action vigorously. An unfavorable outeashthis suit may have a material adverse effaatwr financial condition or results of
operations.
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IPO Class Action

On December 5, 2001, a purported class action Gaintphas filed against us asserting claims forgateviolations of the federal securities
laws. Also named as defendants in this suit wei Bgtearns & Co. Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fen& Smith, Incorporated, Credit Suisse
First Boston Corporation, WIT Capital Corporati@gnaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporatidhase H&Q (Hambrecht & Quist
LLC) (collectively, the "Underwriter Defendants¥incent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMahon and August.ifjuori (collectively, the
"Individual Defendants"). The complaint allegegeimalia, (i) claims under

Section 11 of the Securities Act against all defets, (ii) claims under

Section 12(2) of the Securities Act against the é&inadliter Defendants, (iii) claims under Sectiondf%he Securities Act against us and the
Individual Defendants, (iv) claims under Sectiorfld)®f the Exchange Act and Rule 10(b)(5) agaiistefendants, and (v) claims under
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against the iddial Defendants. According to the allegationshef Complaint, the Underwriter
Defendants allegedly engaged in manipulative prastby, inter alia, pre-selling allotments of skasgour stock in return for undisclosed,
excessive commissions from the purchasers andterieg into after-market tie-in arrangements whadlegedly artificially inflated our stock
price. The plaintiff further alleges that we knemsbould have known of such unlawful practicesrélgf, the Complaint seeks (i) a ruling
that the suit is properly maintainable as a clasi®, (ii) unspecified class damages and statutorgpensation against all defendants, jointly
and severally, (iii) an award of attorneys' feed aosts, and (iv) such other relief as the couentieproper. We deny all allegations agains
believe that we have meritorious defenses on pffsintlaims, and intend to defend this action vimasly. We understand that nearly 1,000
suits with similar claims and/or allegations haeeib filed over the past couple of years againsipeomes which have gone public in that
general time period. All of these claims have beemsolidated before the same judge in the UnitateSDistrict Court for the Southern
District of New York. We were part of a motion tsihiss filed on behalf of all issuers on July 1602. On February 19, 2003, the court
issued its ruling granting in part and denying antgghe issuers' motion. Specifically, the couerded the motion dismissing the

Section 10(b) claims against us and denied theomats to Section 11 claims against us. A settletnetvteen the class plaintiffs and the
issuer defendants, including WWE and the Individdefendants, currently is being contemplated. Algtowe cannot predict the likelihood
of such settlement being reached on the termsmtlyrgeing contemplated, if it were, we anticipttat it would not have a material adverse
effect on us.

We are not currently a party to any other matdeighl proceedings. However, we are involved in svaher suits and claims in the ordinary
course of business, and we may from time to tineoire a party to other legal proceedings.

11. Stockholders' Equity

On October 15, 1999, we filed an amended and esbtartificate of incorporation which, among ottiengs, authorized 60,000,000 share
new Class B common stock, par value $.01 per sheckgssified each outstanding share of World ViingsEntertainment, Inc. common
stock into 566,670 shares of Class B common stagkorized 180,000,000 shares of new Class A constamk, par value $.01 per share,
and authorized 20,000,000 shares of preferred spaskvalue $.01 per share. Class B common stoithlysconvertible into Class A common
stock, on a one for one basis, at any time at fitieio of the holder. The two classes are entitteddual per share dividends and distributions
and vote together as a class with each share es@antitled to ten votes and each share of @lasttitled to one vote, except when sepe
class voting is required by applicable law. Ifaay time, any shares of Class B common stock areftogally owned by any person other tt
Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahon, any descendantitbfez of them, any entity which is wholly owned asdtontrolled by any combinati

of such persons or any trust, all the beneficiasfeghich are any combination of such persons, edthose shares will automatically convert
into shares of Class A common stock.

In July 2002, our Board of Directors approved ampkyee stock purchase plan, the World WrestlingeEatnment 2002 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the "ESPP"). Under the plan, anylaefull-time employee may contribute up to 10%twdir base compensation (subject to
certain income limits) to the serairnual purchase of shares of our common stockptlihghase price is 85% of the fair market valueecatain
plan-defined dates. At April 30, 2003, approximatéh employees were participants in the plan.dodi 2003, employee participants
purchased approximately 11,600 shares of our constamk under the plan at a price of $7.07 per share
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In July 1999, we adopted the 1999 Long-Term Ineenllan ("LTIP"). The LTIP provides for grants gftmns as incentives and rewards to
encourage employees, directors, consultants aridrpenrs in our long-term success. The LTIP providegrants of options to purchase
shares at a purchase price equal to the fair magteé on the date of the grant. The options expirgears after the date of the grant and are
generally exercisable in installments beginning pear from the date of the grant. The LTIP alsovjates for the grant of other forms of
equity-based incentive awards as determined bZtmpensation Committee of the Board of Directorfso@ total options outstanding,
1,172,000 were granted to independent contractorsisting primarily of our performers. With respézthe options granted to independent
contractors, we recorded a charge of $1,092 (o€wt$332 was included in discontinued operatioasP001. The options granted to
employees have been accounted for using the iftnmague method in accordance with Accounting Rples Board Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees."

Presented below is a summary of the LTIP's actidtythe three years ended April 30, 2003.

Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price

Options outstanding at May 1, 2000 ........c........ e 5,348,500 $17.00
options granted ........ccccoevveevvveiiveevees e 1,666,200 $14.42
Options canceled ........ccccoovvevevcievcceenee e (194,000) $17.00
Options eXercised ......ccccovvveeevceeesineeeees e (150,000) $17.00
Options outstanding at April 30, 2001 .............. e 6,670,700 $16.36
Options granted ........ccccovveevvveiiceenees e 5,000 $13.82
Options canceled .......cccccovvevevvvevcceeeees e, (390,100) $16.20
Options eXerciSed .......coccevvvveevvveevieeeeees i, (32,000) $12.94
Options outstanding at April 30, 2002 .............. L 6,253,600 $16.40
options granted .......cccccevvvvevvveivieeeees e, 1,219,000 $13.02
Options canceled ........ccccoovevevcievcceeneee e (476,900) $15.44
Options eXercisSed ......ccccovvveeevcieasieeeeees e (31,250) $12.94
Options outstanding at April 30, 2003 ............. e 6,964,450 $15.89
Options available for future grants at April 30, 20 03 e 2,822,350

The number of options exercisable as of April 3P, 2002 and 2001 was 5,021,600, 3,618,735 ard2, 7,83, respectively. The following
table summarizes information for options outstagdind exercisable as of April 30, 2003:

Number of Options We ighted Average Weighted Average Number of Opt ions Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding R emaining Life  Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$7.66-$21.00 6,964,450 7.1 years $15.89 5,021,600 $16.74
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12. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cimgesubstantially all employees. Under this plaartipipants are allowed to make
contributions based on a percentage of their gglasubject to a statutorily prescribed annuatltlidvie make matching contributions of 50
percent of each participant's contributions, up%of eligible compensation (maximum 3% matchingtabution). We may also make
additional discretionary contributions to the 4Q1gkan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions to
the 401(k) plan was $840, $865, and $635 during32R002 and 2001, respectively.

13. Related Party Transactions

A member of our Board of Directors also was an peaelent contractor engaged by us during 2003, 2662001. In 2003 this director
received $280 and in 2002 and 2001 this direceived $60 for his services as an independent achotr.

On June 11, 2003 we repurchased approximately Bi@mshares of common stock from Viacom for appnaately $19.3 million.
14. Segment Information

Our continuing operations are conducted within tejgortable segments, live and televised entertaibianed branded merchandise. Our live
and televised entertainment segment consists @elxents and television programming. Our brandeatmaadise segment includes consumer
products sold through third party licensees andiiheketing and sale of merchandise, magazines ame ideos. The results of operations
for The World and for the XFL are not included lire tsegment reporting as they are classified segpad discontinued operations in our
consolidated financial statements (See Note 17)d@/ieot allocate corporate overhead to each aofelgenents and as a result, corporate
overhead is a reconciling item in the table beldtere are no intersegment revenues. Revenues déroma sales outside of North America
were approximately $51,840, $38,459 and $28,94206:3, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The table pteseformation about the financial
results of each segment for 2003, 2002 and 200hkssets as of April 30, 2003 and 2002. Unallocatsets consist primarily of cash, short-
term investments and real property and other imvests.
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(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d

April 30,
2003 2002 2001

Net revenues:

Live and televised entertainment ................ ... $295,432 $323,458 $ 335,668

Branded merchandise ...........cccooovvvvveee. L 78,832 86,164 102,471

Total Net revenues .......cccoceeevvveevceeeeeee $ 374,264 $409,622 $438,139
Depreciation and Amortization:

Live and televised entertainment ............... . ... $ 3,709 $ 3,205 $ 2,839

Branded merchandise ..........cccooovveveeeee. L 2,062 - -

COrporate ....ccoovvvvevciiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee 4,774 6,969 1,897

Total depreciation and amortization ............ . ... $ 10,545 $ 10,174 $ 4,736
Operating income (loss):

Live and televised entertainment ............... . ... $ 88,266 $113,924 $130,625

Branded merchandise ...........cccoovvvveee. L 23,362 20,829 29,070

COrPOrate.....ceeeviiiiieeiiiiee e (84,601) (84,720) (72,086)

Total operating income ........ccooeevvveeeeee. . $ 27,027 $ 50,033 $ 87,609
ASSELS: i, 2003 2002

Live and televised entertainment .............. . ... $ 73,727 $ 78,799

Branded merchandise ...........cccocvvvveeee. L 17,395 18,453

Unallocated (1) .eeevvivveeeiiiiiiieeiceeee 346,135 398,100

Total @SSets ...coovvevevveicieecieeieeeeeee $437,257 $ 495,352

(1) - Includes Assets of discontinued operation$2if,129 and $44,256 as of April 30,2003 and 26&shectively.

15. Financial Instruments and Off-Balance Sheek Ris

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instrumewhich potentially subject us to concentrationsreflit risk are principally bank deposits,
short-term investments and accounts receivableh @ad cash equivalents are deposited with hightagedlity financial institutions. Short-
term investments primarily consist of AAA or AA eat instruments. Except for receivables from cablaganies related to pay-per-view
events, concentrations of credit risk with respedtade receivables are limited due to the langalver of customers. A significant portion of
trade receivables for pay-per-view events is rezgbivom our pay-per-view administrator, who colteahd remits payments to us from
individual cable system operators. We perform onga@valuations of our customers' financial conditiocluding our pay-per-view
administrator, and we monitor our exposure for ithedses and maintain allowances for anticipatesdés.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The carryargounts of cash, cash equivalents, stertz investments, accounts receivable and acc
payable approximate fair value because of the gbart nature, and maturity of such instruments. @bt primarily consists of the mortgage
related to our corporate headquarters, which hasanal interest rate of 7.6%. Due to the receatedses in mortgage rates, this debt is now
at a rate in excess of market, however due toetmest of our agreement we are prohibited from refiiveg for several years.
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16. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2003
Net revenues .....cccooveveeeeveeveeiiiiciieeeeees $ 85,449 $ 90,323 $ 92,565 $ 105,927
Gross Profit cocccevveecveevieeeiieevieeeeee $28,831 $28,150 $35,854 $ 44,086
Income from continuing operations ................. ... $ 385 $ 259 $ 50988 $ 6,260
Loss from discontinued operations (1) .....c....... . ... $(1,327) $(1,863) $(21,988) $(10,379)
Netincome (I0SS) ..ccocvvvvvveveiiiiiiiieiceeee $ 2,528 $(1,604) $(16,000) $ (4,119)
Earnings (loss) per common share: basic and dilute d

Continuing operations .........ccoccovvveeeee. $ 005 $ 0.00 $ 0.09 $ 0.09

Discontinued operations (1) ....cccccooceeveeee. L. $ (0.02) $ (0.03) $ (0.31) $ (0.15)

Netincome (I0SS) ..ccoovvevcveaiiieiceeeeee $ 004 $ (0.02) $ (0.23) $ (0.06)
2002
Net revenues .....ccccovevveeeveiveeiiiiciieneeee . $ 87,006 $ 95,031 $ 95,986 $ 131,599
Gross Profit coc.ccevveeeveeviieeiieevieeeeee $30,987 $34,177 $35,254 $ 58,080
Income from continuing operations ................. ... $12,707 $ 5953 $ 5,420 $ 18,418
Loss from discontinued operations (2) ............. . ... $ (715) $(1,112) $ 4,010 $ (2,448)
NetinCome ....cooovveieeeeeeeeee $11,992 $ 4,841 $ 9,430 $ 15,970
Earnings (loss) per common share: basic and dilute d

Continuing operations .........ccoccovvevevee. $ 017 $ 0.08 $ 0.07 $ 0.25

Discontinued operations (2) ......ccccoceeeeeee. L. $ (0.01) $ (0.02) $ 0.05 $ (0.03)

Netincome ....cccoevvevviiiieiieeeeeeee $ 016 $ 007 $ 0.13 $ 0.22

(1) - Our discontinued operations include an aféerimpairment charge of $20,413 recorded in tlirel tuarter of 2003 and after-tax charges
related to the shut down of The World of $8,866rded in the fourth quarter of 2003 (see Note 17).

(2) - For the third quarter of 2002, our disconédwperations reflect the reversal of shutdownrvesethat were no longer required and the
recognition of certain tax benefits.

17. Discontinued Operations

The World

During February 2003, we closed the restaurantatjpers of The World and in April 2003, we closed tlatail store. As a result, we recorded
an after-tax charge of approximately $8,866 dutivgfourth quarter of 2003 in accordance with SBS 146. This amount includes, in
addition to other costs, rental payments requiredkuthe lease, net of management's current estiofigtotential sub-rental income and
leasing costs.

Included in the loss from discontinued operati@rs2003 was an impairment charge of $32,925 asudtref an impairment test conducted
goodwill ($2,533) and other long-lived assets (89Q) at The World. The charge arose from contimygtating losses at that facility and
was taken in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and SNASL44, respectively. Estimates of the fair valoBthe longhved assets at The Wol
were determined by an independent, third partyaiper, based on valuation methods, such as cosaandarket value approaches, with the
valuation method used based upon the nature afritierlying assets.

In May 2000, we had acquired for $24,500 this ldasgertainment complex which was located in Tidgsare. The allocation of the
purchase price included approximately $21,200%eadiassets, $1,300 in current assets and $90&hititles. Goodwill arising as a result of
this transaction was approximately $2,900. In adaoce with SFAS No. 142, we ceased amortizatigyoofiwill as of May 1, 2002.
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The results of The World business, which has bésssified as discontinued operations in the accaryipg consolidated financial
statements, are summarized as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Discontinued Operations:
Loss from The World operations,
net of taxes of $16,359, 3,006 and
$999 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively .... L $(26,691) $(4,903) $(1 ,629)
Estimated loss on shutdown of The World, net of tax es $3,257 ......... (8,866) -- --
Loss from discontinued operations .............. e $(35,557) $(4,903) $(1 ,629)
As of April 30,
2003 2 002
Assets:
Cash oo e $ 586 $ 263
Accounts receivable .........cccccevvceeeeees 5 74
Income tax receivable ........ccccocceeveeeeee. 5343 4 ,004
Prepaid eXpenses .......cccocvvcvevviccces 94 69
INVENLOTY wovovieieeieieeceeeeee s 65 400
Property and equipment .....ccccccevvvvveeeeees s -- 32 ,545
Deferred income taxes, net of
valuation allowance of $1,350 .......ccccceeeee. L 14,437 460
GOOAWIll eoviiiiiie e e - 2 ,534
Total ASSELS wooviieeiiciie e e $20,530 $40 ,349
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ........ccccevveivieeeeeees e, $ 19 $ 622
Accrued eXPENSES .....ccccevviiiiieeeniees e 10,648 2 ,005
Deferred inCOMe ......ccoccvvvevviiiiieeneeeee e, - 224
Total Liabilities .ocovvvvvvivivcvceees e $10,667 $2 ,851

XFL

During 2002, as a result of the reversal of shutdoegerves that were no longer required and thegrétion of certain tax benefits, we
recorded income from discontinued operations 0833, net of minority interest and taxes. The retingishutdown liabilities consist
primarily of XFL medical and other shutdown cost@pproximately $835.

In early May 2001, we formalized our decision teadintinue operations of the XFL and, accordingdported XFL operating results and
estimated shutdown costs as discontinued operatiomg consolidated financial statements. Thissien was a culmination of
management's analysis of the financial viabilityhef venture, which commenced during the fourthrignaf 2001. Estimated shutdown costs
consisted primarily of fixed asset and other agspairment charges of $9,600, contractual labotso5$8,400, lease costs of $1,700,
workers compensation and severance costs of $5d@0ther shutdown costs of $2,600.

On June 12, 2000, NBC purchased approximately dl®mnewly issued shares of our Class A commantlstat $13 per share for a total
investment of $30,000. As a result of the stoclcpase, which was at a below market price, we rexbednon-cash charge of $10,673, which
was being amortized over 30 months. AmortizatioB699 was reflected in discontinued operation2@®1. As a result of our decision to
discontinue operations of the XFL, we wrote off the
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remaining unamortized asset of $6,974 which was r@#ected in discontinued operations. In May 20082 repurchased these shares from
NBC for $27,692 and have classified these sharégasury stock in our consolidated balance sl

The results of the XFL business, which has beessiflad as discontinued operations in the consiléinancial statements, are summarized
as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001

Discontinued Operations:

Loss from XFL operations, net of minority
interest of $42,940 applicable income tax
benefits of $17,679 ...ooovvvcvvviiiiiceee $-- $-  $(31,293)

Estimated income (loss) on shutdown of the

XFL, net of minority interest of $1,721

and 13,907 and applicable income tax

benefits of $2,917 and $5,265 for 2002

and 2001, respectively ........cccccvveeeeeennnn. - 4,638 (15,617)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations ........ ... $-- $4,638  $(46,910)

As of April 30,
2003 2002
Assets:
Cash oo $599 $3,907

Total ASSEtS ...ocvvveeeeeeeieiiciiiieeeees

Liabilities:
Accounts payable .........cccccoevveviiieeeeee. $-- $ 39
Accrued eXPeNSES ....cccceeeeveviiiiiiieee 913 4,974
Due to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. ..... ... 262 115

Minority interest .......ccoeeeeviceeeeenes (288) (611)

Total Liabilities ..........cooeevvivireenennnn.

18. Subsequent Event

On June 13, 2003, our Board of Directors approtiedoyment of a quarterly dividend of $0.04 peretom all Class A and Class B common
shares. The record date for the first such dividerldine 27, 2003 and the payment date is on artaidy 10, 2003.
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SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Description

For the Year Ended April 30, 2003

Allowance for doubtful accounts ........
Inventory obsolescence reserve ........

For the Year Ended April 30, 2002

Allowance for doubtful accounts .......
Inventory obsolescence reserve .......

For the Year Ended April 30, 2001

Allowance for doubtful accounts .......
Inventory obsolescence reserve .......

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzad d

(Dollars In Thousands)

Balance Additions
At Charged to
Beginning Costs and
of Period Expenses Deductions (1)

$2,840 $3,697 $(1,253)
2,351 797 (2,256)

$1,868 $ 900 $ 72
457 3,780 (1,886)

$1,085 $1,239 $ (456)
2,071 803 (2417)

Balance at
End of
Period

$5,284
892

$ 2,840
2,351

$ 1,868
457

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily of dispogdlsbsolete inventory, write-offs of specific bdebts and other adjustments.
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Exhibit 10.1A

NOTICE OF GRANT OF STOCK OPTIONS
AND OPTION AGREEMENT

Optionee: 1

You have been granted an Option to purchase a numbe
Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the Company") Common
subject to the terms and conditions of the World Wr
1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended from time
this Option Agreement:

Date of Grant: June 13, 2003 Type of Optio

Purchase Price Per Share: Vesting
Shares
Shares
consecutive m

Options are not exercisable prior to vesting. Subje
Section 6.03(e) of the Plan, the vested portion of
set forth above in accordance with Section 6.05 of
accordance with Section 6.06 of the Plan.

Exercise After Termination of Services (see Section
Termination of Services for any reason: non-vested

Termination of Services due to death or Disability
portion of the Option is exercisable until the Expi

Termination of Services by the Company without caus
Option is exercisable for one year after the Option

Termination of Services for any reason not describe
business days following the Optionee's Termination.

In no event may this Option be exercised after the
further subject to cancellation and rescission unde
that Section.

The Plan is attached hereto and incorporated by ref
will prevail over any conflicting provisions of thi
Agreement have the meaning given to them in the Pla
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof a
writing signed by the Company and the Optionee. Thi
laws of descent or distribution and may be exercise

By signing below, Optionee and the Company agree to
Optionee has reviewed the Plan and this Option Agre
prior to executing this Option Agreement and fully

Optionee:

Signature

Print Name

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
ID: 04-2693383

1241 East Main Street

Stamford, CT 06902

Plan: 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan

r of shares of World

Stock as described below,
estling Entertainment, Inc.
to time (the "Plan"), and

n: Non-Qualified Stock Option Total Number

Expiration D

on 06/13/04
in equal portions over 36
onths beginning 07/13/04

ct to the terms relating to Termination of Services
the Option may be exercised through the close of bu
the Plan. Vesting of the Option is accelerated foll

6.03(e) of the Plan):
portion of the Option expires immediately;

or following attainment of age 55 with at least 15
ration Date of the Option;

e (as determined in the Committee's sole discretion
ee's Termination.

d above: vested portion of the Option is exercisabl

Expiration Date as provided above. The Option, whet
r Section 10.07 of the Plan upon the occurrence of

erence into this Option Agreement in its entirety.

s Option Agreement. Capitalized terms not otherwise
n. The Plan and this Option Agreement constitute th
nd may not be modified adversely to the Optionee's
s Option may not be transferred in any manner other
d during the lifetime of the Optionee only by the O

the terms stated in this Option Agreement and the
ement in its entirety, has had an opportunity to ob
understands and accepts all provisions of the Optio

World Wrestling Entertainment, |

By

Vice President, Human Resource

Title

ate: June 13, 2008

set forth below and in
siness on the Expiration Date
owing a Change in Control in

years of service: vested

): vested portion of the

e for a period of five

her vested or unvested, is
any circumstances described in

The provisions of the Plan
defined in this Option

e entire agreement of the
interest except by means of a
wise than by will or by the
ptionee.

Optionee acknowledges that the
tain the advice of counsel
n.

nc.



Exhibit 10.2B
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
AGREEMENT FOR RESTRICTED PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

THIS AGREEMENT FOR RESTRICTED PERFORMANCE STOCK UM (this "Agreement") is entered into as of June, 2003 by and
between World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc., a Belee corporation ("WWE" and, together with eachpeoation of which WWE owns
directly or indirectly 50% or more of all equitytérests, the "Company"), and , @ managesngployee of the Company (the
"Employee").

WHEREAS, the Company intends to make a grant uitsld®99 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as in effectlosm date hereof and as it may be
amended from time to time hereafter (the "Plany)ptoviding to Employee restricted stock units thaa subject to vesting based on length of
continued employment and financial performance gi@@hch a "Restricted Performance Stock Unit"); and

WHEREAS, Employee wishes to receive such Restrieterfiormance Stock Units in accordance with the Bled this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises tie mutual covenants stated herein, and intertdibg legally bound, the Compe
and Employee hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions

Each capitalized term used in this Agreement stmilk the meaning ascribed to that term in the ééess otherwise defined herein. The
following capitalized terms shall have the respectneanings set forth below:

(a) "Deferred Issuance Date" shall have the meaasegbed in
Section 3(d).

(b) "Dividend Units" shall have the meaning asailtieereto in
Section 4.

(c) "Employee Account” shall have the meaning &sctithereto in
Section 2(b).

(d) "Fiscal Year" shall mean a fiscal year of tren@any and "Fiscal" followed by a calendar yeatlshaan the Fiscal Year ending in that
calendar year (e.g., "Fiscal 2004" means the F¥éeal of the Company ending April 30, 2004).

(e) "PSU" shall mean a Restricted Performance Sthikunder which Employee shall have the righteoeive one Share and Dividend Ut
accruing as a result of such PSU, upon vesting,applicable, on the Deferred Issuance D



(f) "Date of Grant" for any PSU shall mean the dagecified as such in Exhibit A for such PSU.

(9) "Shares" shall mean the shares of Common S$sclable upon the vesting of a PSU or Dividend Uniif applicable, on the Deferred
Issuance Date.

2. Grant of PSUs; Restrictions

(a) Subject to all terms and conditions of the Riad of this Agreement (and subject to executiothisf Agreement by Employee), the
Company has granted to Employee those PSUs listEdhibit A to this Agreement.

(b) Each PSU shall be recorded in a PSU bookkeeggingunt maintained by the Company in the namengfl&yee (the "Employee
Account"). The Company's obligations under thiséggnent shall be unfunded and unsecured, and n@akpeseparate fund shall be
established and no other segregation of assetsghalade. The rights of Employee under this Agreinshall be no greater than those of a
general unsecured creditor of the Company. Emplshe# have no rights as a stockholder of the Comjiy virtue of any PSU unless and
until such PSU vests and resulting Shares aredssuemployee, and

i. All terms and conditions stated in the Plan alidhose stated in this Agreement shall applyaohePSU and any Dividend Units accrued
under Section 4;

ii. No PSU or any Dividend Units accrued under ®&ctt may be sold, transferred, pledged, hypotleecat otherwise encumbered or
disposed by Employee; and

iii. Each PSU and Dividend Units accrued under iBact shall remain restricted and subject to foufe unless and until such PSU has ve
in Employee in accordance with the Plan and thissAment.

3. Vesting

(a) Annual Vesting. The PSUs granted hereundet gbsl in seven substantially equal installmentshenlast day of each of seven successive
Fiscal Years with the first such vesting to be mad¢he last day of Fiscal 2004. Associated Divilekmits shall vest annually as provided in
Section 4(ii).



(b) Other Vesting

i. Vesting Based on Performance Goals. The Comenittes established performance goals for the Compla@myattainment of which shall
result in the accelerated vesting of all PSUs g@dninder this Agreement as well as all Dividendt&lriBuch performance goals are set for
Exhibit A. Following the end of each Fiscal Yedre tCommittee shall determine whether the Companyattained such performance goals,
and, if so, all such PSUs and Dividend Units simathediately vest.

ii. Optional Vesting. The Committee may also at &me and from time to time determine that any o®8Us and Dividend Units shall
become vested based on such factors as the Commitétg determine in its sole discretion (includiwghout limitation and by way of
example only, performance of Employee's operatimig performance of the Company as a whole, benefiproviding additional long-term
incentive compensation to Employee in light of teenpetitive market for Employee's services, sevaranrangements, etc.). If the
Committee makes such a determination, then suciti@ual PSUs and/or Dividend Units as may be spetiby the Committee in such
determination shall become vested at the time ipddiy the Committee in such determination.

iii. Change in Control. If a Change in Control ocxzand (x) within one year thereafter the Emplayeeployment is terminated by the
Company without cause (as determined by the Comenitt its sole discretion); or (y) within one y#agereafter the Employee terminates his
or her employment as a result of (i) a decreabage salary;

(i) a change in responsibility or reporting sturet; or (iii) a change in employment to a locatinare than twentfive miles from the place «
employment at the time of the Change in Contranthll PSUs and Dividend Units shall immediatelgtve

(c) Effects of Vesting. With respect to each PSUd Bividend Unit that vests, the Company shall, with reasonable time after the later of (i)
vesting or (ii) the Deferred Issuance Date (asngefiherein), if any, issue one Share to Employéeowt restrictions under the Plan or this
Agreement. Any such issuance shall be subject tava$ (including without limitation those goverginvithholding of taxes and those
governing securities and transfer thereof).



(d) Election for Deferred Issuance. Employee magtdio defer the issuance of all but not less #ibof the Shares and Dividend Units in his
or her Employee Account to be vested at the erideothen current Fiscal Year by executing and delling to the Company a written deferral
election in such form as the Company may pres¢gahd containing such terms and conditions as thepgaoy may establish in such form)
each case not later than the October 31 occurriog {o the end of the then current Fiscal Yeaswrh other date that the Company may
establish for delivery of such election. The dat&klished by such election in accordance with sechs and conditions shall be the
"Deferred Issuance Date." The Deferred Issuance Brall in no event be later than the date of Eygats termination of employment with
the Company. Any such Deferred Issuance Date sbalbe revocable by the Employee or the Company.

4. Dividend Units; Vesting

With respect to each PSU, whether or not vested has not been forfeited (but only until the uhdeg Shares are issued), the Company
shall, with respect to any cash dividends paidiar8s (based on the same record and payment déie @disidends paid on Shares) accrue
into the Employee Account the number of whole S&@tbividend Units") as could be purchased with diggregate dividends that would
have been paid with respect to such PSU if it veereutstanding Share (together with any other aastued in the Employee Account after
that time) at the price per Share equal to themgpgrice on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)daomparable price, if the Shares are
not then listed on the NYSE) on the date of théddind payment. These Dividend Units thereafter

(i) will be treated as PSUs for purposes of futlikédend accruals pursuant to this Section 4; @pav{ll vest in such amounts (rounded to the
nearest whole Dividend Unit) at the same time as*B8Us with respect to which such Dividend Unitsearreceived. Any remaining portions
of such dividend not used because they would pgectess than a whole Share shall be accrued irttptoyee Account as cash. Any
dividends or distributions on Shares paid othen fihacash shall accrue in the Employee Accountsiradl vest at the same time as the PSUs
in respect of which they are made (in each casieeisame form, based on the same record date dmel same time, as such dividend or o
distribution is paid on such Share).



5. Forfeiture

Except as provided for vesting on termination optayment following a Change of Control as contertgddan Section 3(b)(iii) or vesting as
part of a severance arrangement as contemplated in

Section 3(b)(ii), upon termination of Employee'spdoyment (regardless of whether caused by resigmat&érmination by the Company,
death, disability or otherwise), each PSU, Dividémit and other remaining accrued dividends inEngployee Account, in each case that
not previously vested, shall be forfeited by thegtoyee to the Company. Employee shall thereaftee m right, title or interest whatsoever
in such unvested PSUs, Dividend Units and accrisdehds and Employee shall immediately returrh®s $ecretary of the Company any
and all documents representing such forfeited itékHsrested PSUs, Dividend Units and dividends¢ioe (whether or not deferred pursuant
to Section 3(d)), shall immediately be paid or étuas the case may be, to the Employee.

6. No Continuation of Employment

This Agreement shall not give Employee any rightitaployment or continued employment and the Compaany terminate Employee's
employment or otherwise treat Employee without réda any effect such termination may have upon léyge under this Agreement.

7. Terms Subject to Plan

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tleatrary, each and every term, condition and prowisif this Agreement shall be, and sl
be construed as, consistent in all respects wiitierahs, conditions and provisions of the Plararl{ term, condition or provision of this
Agreement is (or is alleged to be) inconsistenhuliie Plan in any respect, the Plan shall goveail icircumstances and such inconsistent (or
allegedly inconsistent) term, condition or provisghall be construed so as to be consistent nesplects with the Plan.

8. Entire Agreement: Amendments

This Agreement contains all terms and conditiorth wéspect to the subject matter hereof and no dment, modification or other change
hereto shall be of any force or effect unless antd set forth in a writing executed by Employeelahe Company (in each case except for
such amendments as the Company is expressly azgldrereunder, or under the Plan, to make withmyl&yee's consent).
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9. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and constmeaé¢ordance with the laws of the State of Conaegtivithout giving effect to principles
of conflicts of law. If any dispute arises with pest to this Agreement or any matter hereundersiigh dispute shall be submitted to the
Federal or state courts sitting in the State ofr@aticut, with each party waiving any defense tthseenue; and

(y) each party irrevocably waives its right to ayjtrial. The prevailing party shall be reimburdmdthe other party for any costs of any
proceeding relating to this Agreement in any mdtereunder incurred by the prevailing party, inalgdreasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

10. Taxes

Employee shall be liable for any and all taxesluding withholding taxes, arising out of this gramtthe vesting of PSUs or distribution of
Shares hereunder. Employee may elect to satisfywithholding tax obligation by having the Compaeyain Shares having a fair market
value equal to the Company's minimum withholdintjgatiion.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employee has executed this Agrent and the Company has caused this Agreembetdrecuted by its duly
authorized officer, all as of the day and yeat filsove written.

EMPLOYEE WORLD WREST LING
ENTERTAINME NT, INC.
By:
Title




Exhibit 10.8

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE BONUS PLAN

1. Purpose. The World Wrestling Entertainment, Management Bonus Plan is intended to increaseaiives for eligible executives to
attain and maintain the highest standards of p@dorce, to attract and retain key executives oftanting competence and ability, to
stimulate the active interest of key executivethmdevelopment and financial success of the Cogppgarfurther the identity of interests of
employees with those of the Company's stockholgengrally and to reward executives when certairaibjes are achieved.

2. Definitions. As used herein, the terms set foglow shall have the following respective meanings

(a) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the @any.

(b) "Bonus" means an award payable under this Plan.

(c) "Bonus Period" means the fiscal year beginmingr after the Effective Date with respect to vhiee Bonus is to be paid.
(d) "Business Criteria" means the business critestiad in Section 6 of this Plan.

(e) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1&8&mended from time to time.

(f) "Committee" means the Compensation CommittetmeBoard, which is the committee appointed byBbard to administer the Plan. The
Committee shall be constituted at all times smasdet the outside director requirements of Sed&#{m) of the Code.

(9) "Company" means World Wrestling Entertainmémt, and its subsidiaries.
(h) "Effective Date" means May 1, 2004.
(i) "Eligible Executives" means all the employeéshe Company that are director level (or equivgland above.

(j) "Participant" means, with respect to a Bonugdek the Eligible Executives selected by the Cotterito be eligible to receive a Bonus for
such Bonus Period as provided in Section 5 ofRias.

(k) "Performance Objective" means the performargjeative or objectives established pursuant toiGeé of the Plan.
() "Plan" means the World Wresting Entertainmént, Management Incentive Bonus Plan, as it magrbended from time to time.

3. Administration. The Committee shall interpreg flan, prescribe, amend, and rescind rules rgladiit, select eligible Participants, and
take all other actions necessary for its admirtisinawhich actions shall be final and binding ugdhParticipants.

4. Compliance with Section 162(m). The Plan shalatministered to comply with Section 162(m) of @ale and regulations promulgated
thereunder, and if any Plan provision is foundtodie in compliance with Section 162(m) of the Gdtle provision shall be deemed
modified as necessary to meet the requirementsaid® 162(m) of the Code.

5. Selection of Participants and Performance ObjectVithin 90 days after the commencement of daahus Period, or at such later time as
permitted by Section 162(m) of the Code and reguiatthereunder, the Committee shall determineriting (i) the Participants who shall be
eligible to receive a Bonus for such Bonus Per{iddthe Performance Objective, which shall be latige or absolute measure of any one or
more of the Business Criteria, and

(iii) the formula for computing the amount of Bomayable to each Participant if the Performances€ibje is achieved (such formula shall
comply with the requirements applicable to perfangebased compensation plans under Section 162Z(tin¢ €ode).

6. Business Criteria. The Business Criteria witlie specified levels of one or more of the follogy

Net Revenues Return on Capital
Operating Income Return on Equity
Income from Continuing Operations Return on Assets

Net Income Return on Investment
Earnings per Common Share (diluted) Change in Stock price
Cash Flow Total Stockholder Return
EBITDA

The above terms shall have the same meaning be i@dmpany's financial statements, or if the teairesnot used in the Company's finan



statements, as applied pursuant to generally aadeuicounting principles, or as used in the Compdnsiness, as applicable. As determ
by the Committee, the Business Criteria shall @iag (i) in absolute terms or relative to one areother companies or indices and (ii) to a
business unit, geographic region, one or more agggrincorporated entities, or the Company as alevh
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7. Bonus Certification. The Committee shall certifywriting prior to payment of the Bonus that #herformance Objective has been attained
and the Bonus is payable. With respect to Commigggfication, approved minutes of the meetingvinich the certification is made shall be
treated as written certification.

8. Maximum Bonus Payable. The maximum Bonus payader this Plan in respect for any one fiscal yedahe Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer or any other executive ofi named in the Company's proxy statement shdtilrepercent (4%) of the EBITDA of
the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidadsd ("EBITDA"); the maximum Bonus payable undgs plan in respect of any fiscal
year to any other Participant shall be three per@&9) of EBITDA; and the maximum aggregate Bonysas to all Participants in respect
any fiscal year shall be twenty percent (20%) of HBA.

9. Discretion to Reduce Awards. The Committeetdrsole and absolute discretion, may reduce theuatrad any award otherwise payable to
a Participant.

10. Active Employment Requirement. Except as predidelow, a Bonus shall be paid for a Bonus Peridg to a Participant who is actively
employed by the Company (or on approved vacatiattoer approved leave of absence) throughout tei8®&eriod and who is employed
the Company on the date the Bonus is paid. Toxteneconsistent with the deductibility of awardslar Section 162(m) of the Code and
regulations thereunder, the Committee may in iks discretion grant a Bonus for the Bonus Period Rarticipant who is first employed or
who is promoted to a position eligible to beconfeaaticipant under this Plan during the Bonus Peiiodvhose employment is terminated
during the Bonus Period because of the Participagtirement, death, or because of disability dimee in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code. In
such cases of active employment for part of a Bétaersod, a pro rata Bonus may be paid for the Bétargod.

11. Payment of Bonus. A Bonus shall be paid tdPtheicipant for the Bonus Period as provided is #lan. The Company shall pay the
Bonus to the Participant in a single cash paymsgisban as administratively practicable after thalBoPeriod and after the Committee
certifies that the Bonus is payable as provideSdntion 7. In the event of the Participant's incetapcy, the Company in its sole discretion
may pay any Bonus to the Participant's guardiadirectly to the Participant. In the event of thetRgpant's death, any Bonus shall be paid to
the Participant's spouse or, if there is no sung\8pouse, the Participant's estate. Payments tinder

Section shall operate as a complete dischargeed€tmmittee and the Company. The Company shallddéum any Bonus paid under the
Plan the amount of any taxes required to be withbglthe federal or any state or local government.
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12. Stockholder Approval. No Bonus shall be payaloider this Plan unless the Plan is disclosed doagproved by the stockholders of the
Company in accordance with Section 162(m) of thdeCand regulations thereunder.

13. Limitation of Rights. Nothing in this Plan shiaé construed to (a) give any employee of the Comgany right to be awarded any Bonus
other than that set forth herein, as determinetheyCommittee; (b) give a Participant any rightatgbever with respect to shares of common
stock of the Company; (c) limit in any way the tigi the Company to terminate an employee's empémgrwith the Company at any time;

(d) give a Participant or any other person anyr@gkin any fund or in any specific asset or assitise Company; or (e) be evidence of any
agreement or understanding, express or implied thieaCompany will employ an employee in any paitc position or at any particular rate
of remuneration.

14. Non-Exclusive Arrangement. The adoption andaien of the Plan shall not preclude the BoartherCommittee from approving other
incentive or compensation arrangements for thefiieféndividuals who are Participants hereundgetlze Board or Committee, as the case
may be, deems appropriate and in the best intevétte Company.

15. Nonassignment. Subject to Section 11 hereeftitht of a Participant to the payment of any Boaader the Plan may not be assigned,
transferred, pledged, or encumbered, nor shall Egbhor other interests be subject to attachnmgamnishment, execution, or other legal
process.

16. Amendment or Termination of the Plan. The Cottamimay amend or terminate the Plan at any tinmsp that no amendment or
termination shall be made that would impair thétsgof any Participant to a Bonus that would begpésy were the Participant to terminate
employment on the effective date of such amendmetgrmination, unless the Participant consentsitdh amendment or termination. Unless
sooner terminated by action of the Committee, the Bhall automatically terminate on April 30, 20@8hough all bonuses payable in res

of the fiscal year then ending shall be paid asnptty thereafter as practicable notwithstandingtérenination hereof.

17. Governing Law. The Plan shall be governed bydlwvs of the State of Connecticut other than tiélict of laws provisions thereof.
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Exhibit 10.9
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

This Independent Contractor Agreement ("Agreemdat&ntered into as of the 1st day of May, 200% (Effective Date") by and between
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC., with its priripal place of business at 1241 East Main Streatnf&trd, Connecticut
06902 ("WWE"), and COMMUNICATIONS CONSULTANTS, INCwith an address at Post Office Box 238, Newtontfee Massachusetts
02459 ("Consultant"), each individually referredama "party" and collectively referred to as tharties."”

WHEREAS, WWE desires to utilize Consultant to feintertain consulting services, in accordance thighterms of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaptdarth herein and for other good and valuables@®ration, the receipt ai
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, thgips agree as follows:

1. SERVICES/ACCOUNTABILITIES: WWE hereby engages tbonsultant on a non-exclusive basis during thenTlas defined below)
performing such consulting services relating tetsion syndication transactions featuring the progning of WWE and its affiliates as are
requested by the Chief Executive Officer or heligleme from time to time (referred to collectivelgrhinafter as the "Services"). WWE
acknowledges that Consultant's Services shall Hernpeed at such times as are convenient to Comdylpaovided that Consultant agrees to
hold itself reasonably available to render the Bes/contemplated herein.

Consultant shall devote its best efforts to théguarance of the Services and shall protect and pterthe interests of [OBJECT OMITTED]
WWE. Consultant shall cooperate in any reasonaklenar whatsoever with [OBJECT OMITTED]WWE in contiea with the performance
of the Services.

2. TERM: The term of this Agreement shall commease®f the Effective Date and shall continue foedqa of one (1) year ("Initial Term"),
and thereafter shall be automatically renewed diocsssive one-year periods under like terms andittons ("Renewal Term") unless
terminated in accordance with the terms hereofe (filitial Term and all Renewal Terms, if any, shedteinafter be referred to collectively as
the "Term").

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Consultant representd aarrants that its relationship to WWE and itsmas parent, subsidiary and
affiliated corporations hereunder shall be thaamindependent contractor and not an employee o/ any purpose whatsoever.
Consultant shall have sole control of the manndrraeans of performing its work, and WWE is intezdsbnly in the results Consultant
obtains. Consultant does not have, nor shall i fiteklf out as having, any right, power or authyotd create any contract or obligation, either
express or implied, on behalf of, in the name ohiading upon WWE, its parent, subsidiary or &fitd companies, unless WWE or any of
the foregoing companies shall consent thereto itingr



4. COMPENSATION:

a) In consideration of the full and faithful penfegince by Consultant of all of his obligations heker, WWE shall pay Consultant Twenty
Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars ($2@,88) per month or an aggregate of $250,000.0@¢e&r. Such amount shall be due and
payable on or before the last day of each montimguhe Term.

b) WWE shall reimburse Consultant for any reasamabld necessary expenses ("Expenses") actuallgréaicy Consultant in the
performance of the Services hereunder, subject\WB then current policies regarding such reimbuesg, provided that any and all such
Expenses are approved in advance by WWE and owly rgreipt of adequate supporting documentatioretbe Such Expenses shall be
reimbursed within fifteen (15) business days follagvsubmission to and approval by WWE of an invaioamore frequently than on a
monthly basis.

5. TERMINATION: Either party, in its sole discretipmay terminate this Agreement upon written noticthe other party at any time with or
without cause, provided that [OBJECT OMITTED]WWA&Hy remaining obligation hereunder shall be to Gaysultant compensation
and/or reimbursement expenses, as applicable theamd accrued but not yet paid through the daterofination.

6. OTHER COVENANTS OF CONSULTANT. In order to indu@VWE to enter into this Agreement, Consultant bem@grees as follows, as
of the Effective Date:

(a) CONFIDENTIALITY. Consultant acknowledges thatfeason of its relationship with and service to WWt has had and will have acc

to confidential information relating to operaticasd technology and know-how which have been deeeldqgy WWE and its affiliates,
including, without limitation, information and kndedge pertaining to wrestling productions and panfances, public relations and
marketing, products and their design and manufactuethods of operation, sales and profit datapousr and supplier lists and relationships
between WWE and its affiliates and their respeativstomers, suppliers and others who have busttegggs with it, other information not
readily available to the public, and plans for fetdevelopments relating thereto. In recognitiothefforegoing, during the Term and at all
times thereafter, Consultant will maintain the édentiality of all such information and other mastef WWE and its affiliates known to
Consultant which are otherwise not in the publimdm and will not disclose any such informatioraty person outside the organization of
WWE, wherever located, except as required by lawitir WWE Board of Directors' prior written authpaition and consent.

(b) RECORDS. All papers, books and records of ekergt and description relating to the businessafairs of WWE, or any its of affiliate
whether or not prepared by Consultant, other theaagmal notes prepared by or at the direction afsGliant, shall be the sole and exclusive
property of WWE, and Consultant shall surrendenthi@ WWE at any time upon request by WWE.
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(c) NON-COMPETITION. Consultant hereby agrees WMRVE that during the Term and for a period of ongy@ar following the date of
termination or non-renewal, it shall not: (i) prdeiServices or any other services to any persentity engaged in the business of
professional wrestling other than WWE or any parsuabsidiary or affiliated company thereof; (iitisely solicit any employee or agent of
WWE or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates toveahe employment or engagement thereof; andrti)ice or attempt to induce any custor
supplier, licensee or other individual, corporattmrother organization having a business relatiagh WWE or its subsidiaries or affiliates to
cease doing business with WWE or its subsidianiés any way interfere with the relationship betweay such customer, supplier, licensee
or other person and WWE or its subsidiaries otiafés.

(d) WORKS. Consultant hereby acknowledges thaduties performed hereunder were specifically odi@recommissioned by the WWE
("Work™); that the Work constitutes and shall catosé a work-made-for-hire as defined in the Unigtdtes Copyright Act of 1976; that
WWE is and shall be the author of said work-madehfce and the owner of all rights in and to the W/throughout the universe, in
perpetuity and in all languages, for all now knowvrhereafter existing uses, media and forms, inetydvithout limitation, the copyrights
therein and thereto throughout the universe foiriliml term and any and all extensions and rereweereof; and that WWE shall have the
right to make such changes therein and such usesathas it may deem necessary or desirable. "Wahl include, but not be limited to all
material and information created by Consultanhi ¢ourse of or as a result of Consultant's engagewith WWE which is fixed in a
tangible medium of expression, including, but mwited to, notes, drawings, memoranda, correspargledocuments, records, notebooks,
flow charts, computer programs and source and bbges, regardless of the medium in which theyfiaegl. To the extent that the Work is
not recognized as a work-made-for-hire, Consul@néby assigns, transfers and conveys to WWE, wfitteservation, all of Consultant's
right, title and interest throughout the univers@eérpetuity in the Work, including, without limitan, all rights of copyright and copyright
renewal in said Work or any part thereof. Consulteifi take whatever steps and do whatever acts Wittiests, including, but not limited
to, placement of the WWE's proper copyright notinesuch Works to secure or aid in securing copympgbtection and will assist WWE or
nominees in filing applications to register claiofscopyright in such works. Consultant will not reguce, distribute, display publicly, or
perform publicly, alone or in combination with adgta processing or network system, any Works of WiMitRout the written permission
from WWE.

(e) INVENTIONS. All Inventions (as defined below)ate or conceived by Consultant, either solely mtlypwith others, during Consultant's
engagement with WWE and within one (1) year aftemination of such engagement, whether or not sfugmtions are made or conceived
during the hours of Consultant's engagement or thighuse of WWE's facilities, materials, or persginwill be the property of WWE or its
nominees. "Invention" means discoveries, conceptd,ideas, whether patentable or not, includingnpbtilimited to apparatus, processes,
methods, techniques, and formulae, as well as ingonents thereof or know-how related thereto, ne¢ptd any present or prospective
activities of WWE or its



subsidiaries. Consultant will, without royalty aryaother additional consideration: (i) inform WWEomptly and fully of such Inventions by
written reports, setting forth in detail a desddpt the operation and the results achieved; ¢§gjgn to WWE all Consultant's right, title, and
interest in and to such Inventions, any applicatifim United States and foreign Letters Patent,camgributions, divisions, continuations-in-
part, reissues, extensions or additions theread fibr upon such Inventions and any United Statesfareign Letters Patent; (iii) assist WWE
or its nominees, at the expense of WWE, to obtaaintain and enforce such United States and foreggiers Patent for such Inventions as
WWE may elect; and (iv) execute, acknowledge, aglver to WWE to confirm the complete ownershipWWVE of such Inventions.

() ENFORCEMENT. Consultant agrees and warrantsttieacovenants contained herein are reasonablieyalid considerations has been
and will be received therefor and that the agredsnegt forth herein are the result of arms-lengifpotiations between the parties hereto.
Consultant recognizes that the provisions of tlgistiBn 6 are vitally important to the continuinglfaee of WWE, and its affiliates, and that
money damages constitute a totally inadequate rerfieecny violation thereof. Accordingly, in theewt of any such violation by Consultant,
in addition to any other remedies they may have, BVa#id its subsidiaries and affiliates shall haweeright to institute and maintain a
proceeding to compel specific performance theredd dssue an injunction restraining any actiondmnsultant in violation of this Section 6.

7. APPROVAL AND CONTROLS: WWE shall have the sotelabsolute control, approval and discretion okerdesign, colors,
presentation, depiction and exhibition of WWE'sreleters and intellectual properties that are creatgelate in any way to the Services.
Moreover, WWE reserves all rights to the trade reiared trademarks and to any other commercial sysihat it may adopt or use that are
created or related in any way to the Services.

8. NOTICES: Any notices are to be sent by certifiegil, return receipt requested, federal expresBist class postal service, to the addre:
first set forth above, and if to [OBJECT OMITTED]WAMo the attention of Edward L. Kaufman, Esq., 8eNiice President and General
Counsel.

9. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be goverrmdthe laws of the State of Connecticut governiogtacts entered into and to be
fully performed therein.

10. SEVERABILITY: In the event that any provisionmortion of this Agreement shall be declared ifdzal unenforceable for any reason by
a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisiarportion shall be considered separate and apart fhe remainder of this Agreement, wh
shall remain in full force and effect.

11. NAME AND LIKENESS: [OBJECT OMITTED]WWE and iticensees and/or assignees shall have the exclasty@erpetual right, but
not the obligation, to use and license the useasfsGltant's name, photograph, likeness and otlgrdghical data ("Name and Likeness") for
the purpose of advertising, marketing, promotinghligizing and exploiting any matter related to 8ervices performed hereunder with
Consultant's permission, which shall not be unneally withheld.



12. INDEMNITY:

(a) Consultant shall hold [OBJECT OMITTED]WWE, fiarent, subsidiary and affiliate companies and tfesipective directors, officers,
employees, independent contractors, licenseesessiurs, assigns and agents of the foregoing, hssrfitem and against all claims, liabilitie
damages, costs and attorneys' fees arising fronanfl negligent or intentional acts by Consultant(2) any breach or alleged breach by
Consultant of any representation, warranty or agezg made by Consultant hereunder.

(b) [OBJECT OMITTED]WWE shall hold Consultant haesé from and against all claims, liabilities, dassggosts and attorneys' fees
arising solely from (1) any negligent or intentibaats by WWE; or (2) any breach or alleged braachVWE of any representation, warranty
or agreement made by WWE hereunder.

13. REMEDIES: The waiver by either party of anydmie hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of any prisubsequent breach hereof. All
remedies of either party shall be cumulative amdpirsuit of one remedy shall not be deemed a waivany other remedy.

14. INTEGRATION: This Agreement contains the contplenderstanding existing between the parties erstibjects covered and supers¢
any previous written or verbal understandings watbpect thereto. This Agreement may not be ameeaxegpt by a writing signed by
Consultant and [OBJECT OMITTED]WWE.

15. ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement is not assignabléelegable, in whole or in part, by Consultant. JBET OMITTED]WWE may
assign this Agreement in whole or in part, withlbuitation



or restriction. This Agreement shall insure to blemefit of WWE, its successors, assignees, licansee grantees and associated, affiliated
and subsidiary companies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeatthis Agreement as of the date first above written

COVMUNI CATI ONS CONSULTANTS, | NC. WORLD WRESTLI NG
ENTERTAI NMVENT, | NC.

By: /s/ Joseph Perkins By: [/s/ Linda E. McMahon
Joseph Perki ns Li nda E. McMahon
Pr esi dent Presi dent & Chief Executive
Oficer



EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiary State of Incorporation

The World Entertainment, Inc.* Delaware

*The operations of this subsidiary have ceasedtl@desults of its operations are included in tbenany's financial statements as
Discontinued Operation



Exhibit 23.1
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement Nos. 333-92041 and 333-9237Bosm S-8 and Nos. 333-49930 and
333-72536 on Form S-3 of World Wrestling Entertaémty Inc. of our report dated June 13, 2003, appgan this Annual Report on Form
10-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. for tiiear ended April 30, 2003.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stanford, Connecticut
July 2, 2003



Exhibit 99.1
18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant todbe@fi6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

In connection with the Annual Report of World Wiegj Entertainment, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK.@or the fiscal year ended April

30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Excha@gesmission on the date hereof (the "Report"), edche undersigned, in the capacities

on the dates indicated below, hereby certifiesymamsto 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursasection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that to his/her knowledge:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the reeuirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securieisof 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitl§ presents, in all material respects, the faiaincondition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: July 2, 2003

By: /s/ Linda E. MMhon

Li nda E. McMahon
Chi ef Executive Oficer

By: /s/ Philip B.Livingston
Philip B. Livingston
Chi ef Financial Oficer
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